London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

haf\/

hammersmith & fulham

Licensing Sub-Committee
Agenda

Monday 17 February 2025 at 6.30 pm
This meeting will be held remotely

Watch the meeting live: youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham

MEMBERSHIP
Administration: Opposition:
Councillor Mercy Umeh (Chair) Councillor Jose Afonso

Councillor Florian Chevoppe-Verdier

CONTACT OFFICER: Charles Francis
Committee Co-ordinator
Governance and Scrutiny
Tel: 07776 672945
E-mail: Charles.Francis@Ibhf.gov.uk

Public Notice

This meeting will be held remotely. Members of the press and public can watch the
meeting live on YouTube: youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham

Speaking at Licensing meetings is restricted to those who have submitted a
representation and registered to speak.

Date Issued: 06 February 2025



https://www.youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham
https://www.youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham

N - =
. .|,,,
3

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Licensing Sub-Committee Agenda

17 February 2025

Pages
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item,
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or
any other significant interest which they consider should be declared in
the public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless itis a
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the
nature of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that
item or as soon as it becomes apparent.

At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary
interest or other significant interest may also make representations,
give evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor
must then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is
discussed and any vote taken.

Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration.
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest.

Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards
Committee.

JMB FOOD AND WINE, 143 ASKEW ROAD, LONDON, W12 9AU - 3-78
6:30PM

MG FOOD & WINE, 143 ASKEW ROAD, LONDON, W12 9AU - 8PM 79 - 136
OR AFTER THE CONSIDERATION OF THE FIRST HEARING.



Agenda Iltem 3

Contents Page
1. REVIEW APPLICATION 4

2. CURRENT LICENCE 4-5

3. BACKGROUND 5

4. CONSULTATION 5

4.1 Relevant Representations 5-6

5. OTHER INFORMATION 6

5.1 Enforcement History 6

5.2 Temporary Event Notices (TENS) 6

6. POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 6-9

7. THE REVIEW HEARING 9
APPENDICES

Copy of the Review Application and supporting documents 10-32
Copy of Current Premises Licence and plans 33-41
Map showing location of premises and neighbouring premises 42-63
Copy of Representation from the Police Licensing Team

Supporting the Review 64-65
Copy of Representation from the Trading Standards Team

Supporting the Review 66-69
Copy of Representations from Local Residents 70-73

Supporting the Review

Relevant paragraphs of the revised guidance issued by the
Secretary of State 74-78

Page 3



1.

2.

REVIEW APPLICATION

On the 23 December 2024, an application for a review of a premises licence under
Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 was served by Licensing and Trading Standard
Officer Mr Bill Massini, on behalf of Hammersmith and Fulham Council’s Licensing
Authority, 45 Beavor Lane, Hammersmith, London, W6 9AR. The review application
is in respect of the premises known as the JMB Food and Wine, 143 Askew Road,
London, W12 9AU.

The application for a review of the premises licence was made on the grounds of the
protection of children from harm, the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety
following several incidents at the premises, including the sale of alcohol and nicotine
inhaling products to children.

On the 31%t October 2024, the Trading Standards Team received a complaint claiming
the premises had sold alcohol and nicotine inhaling products to five children. On the
05" November 2024, the Licensing Team received a complaint outlining the same
incident at the premises.

On the 04" November 2024, a test purchase was carried out at the premises by the
Trading Standards team, where a staff member at the premises sold a disposable
vape (nicotine inhaling product) to a 16 year 0-month-old boy who was accompanied
by a 16 year and 3-month-old girl.

On the 6" November 2024, an officer from the Trading Standard and Licensing Team
carried out a joint visit to the premises where numerous breaches of premises licence
conditions were identified.

Subsequent visits were made to the premises on the 11", 17" and 27" November
2024 where outstanding breaches of conditions attached to the premises licence
where identified.

On the 91" December 2024, the premises licence holder was interviewed under caution
by Trading Standards and Licensing officers with respect to the recent incidents at the
premises.

Mr Massini, on behalf of the Licensing Authority, explains in the review papers, that
the premises licence holder and Designated Premises Supervisor (“DPS), has shown
complete disregard for their responsibilities and to those damage by and/or affected
by his actions. Mr Massini, therefore, requests that the licensing sub-committee
consider a revocation of the licence.

A copy of the review application and supporting documentation can be seen on pages
10-32 of this report.

CURRENT LICENCE

The premises currently benefit from a premises licence which permits the following
licensable activities:

Page 4



4.1

Sale of Alcohol Off the Premises
Monday to Sunday 09:00 - 23:00

Hours Premises Open to the Public
Monday to Sunday 06:30 - 23:00

A copy of the current premises licence and plan can be seen on pages 33-41 of this
report.

BACKGROUND

Licensing records show that the initial premises licence was granted in respect of the
premises on the 18" January 2019. On the 6" of December 2023, an application to
transfer the premises licence and vary the DPS to Mr Subir Singh Bhatia was granted.

On the 23" November 2023, a variation application requesting to extend the opening
hours of the premises and hours for the sale of alcohol off the premises was received.
The application was heard and determined at a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing on
the 14" February 2024. A copy of the current premises licence and plan as granted by
the Licensing Sub-Committee can be seen on pages 33-41 of this report.

The main access to the premise’s is located on Askew Road. The premises operate
as a convenience store. There is a mixture of both residential and commercial
premises within the area. A map showing the location of the premises and
neighbouring licensed premises can be seen on pages 42-63 of this report.

There are several options for transport away from the area including buses and taxis
which run from in and around Askew Road area. Stamford Brook tube station is a 15-
minute walk away, Ravenscourt Park tube station is a 17-minute walk away and
Goldhawk Road tube Station is a 19-minute walk away.

CONSULTATION
A public notice was displayed by the Council at and near the premises. A further public
notice was displayed by the Council at Hammersmith Town Hall. Details of the

application were also published on the Council’'s web site.

A notice of review was served on the premises licence holder and all the statutory
responsible authorities as required by regulation.

Relevant Representations

The licensing section received one representation from Police Constable (“PC”) Nicole
Sondh on behalf of the Hammersmith and Fulham Metropolitan Police Licensing team,
supporting the review application. A copy of this representation can be seen on pages
64-65 of this report.

The licensing section received one representation from Mr Doug Love on behalf of the
Trading Standards team, supporting the review application. A copy of this

Page 5



5.1

5.2

6.

representation and supporting documentation can be seen on pages 66-69 of this
report.

The licensing section received two representations from local residents supporting the
review application. A copy of these representations can be seen on pages 70-73 of
this report.

OTHER INFORMATION
Enforcement History

On the 6" November 2024, Trading Standards and Licensing Enforcement officers
made a joint visit to the premises with a letter requesting CCTV footage to be produced.
A full licensing inspection was carried out and breaches of conditions 9, 10, 12, 13, 14,
18 and 19 attached to the premises were identified. A verbal warning was given, and
the inspection sheet was left at the premises as a warning letter.

On the 11" November 2024, Licensing Enforcement officer visited the premises
accompanied by a Law Enforcement Officer (“LET”). Licensing Enforcement identified
breaches of conditions 1, 4, 5, 7, 9, 13, 14, 15, 16 and 18 attached to the premises
licence. A verbal waning was given, and the inspection sheet was left at the premises
as a warning letter.

On the 9" December 2024, a PACE interview under caution was carried out by
Licensing and Trading Standard officers with the current premises licence holder and
his representative in attendance. The PACE interview was undertaken in relation to an
incident which occurred at the premises surrounding sales of alcohol to persons under
18 years old. Following the PACE interview, the premises licence holder has been
informed he will be reported for possible prosecution.

Temporary Event Notice (“TENs”)

There have been no TENs submitted in respect of this premises within the past twelve
months.

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 Itis the Council’s duty under the Licensing Act 2003 to determine the review with a view

to promoting the four licensing objectives: Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public
Safety, Prevention of Public Nuisance and the Protection of Children from Harm.

6.2 In reaching a decision the Council must have regard to the Council’'s adopted Statement

of Licensing Policy (“SLP”) and the guidance issued by the Secretary of State under
section 182 Licensing Act 2003.

6.3 The revised guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the Licensing

Act 2003 (“the Guidance”) contains advice in paragraphs 11.16 to 11.28 in relation to
the review of a premises licence. Paragraphs 11.16 to 11.28 of the revised guidance
can be seen on pages 74-78 of this report.

Page 6



6.4 The Council’'s own SLP gives guidance concerning the review of a premises licence.

6.5 Policy 10 pages 28 and 29 of the SLP in relation to reviews states that the Act describes

two “groups” that may make representations to applications and may apply for an
existing premises licence or club premises certificate to be reviewed by the Licensing
Authority. These groups are Responsible Authorities and “Other Persons”.

At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence, a Responsible Authority, such
as the police or the fire authority, or other persons, may apply for a licence to be
reviewed because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of the four
Licensing Objectives.

A licence may be reviewed where it is alleged that the Licensing Objectives are not
being promoted and there is evidence to show this. Guidance on grounds for a review
are outlined in Annex 5 of the SLP.

At a hearing held to determine an application for a review of a licence the sub-
committee may:

(a) Take no further action.

(b) Modify the conditions of the licence.

(c) Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence.

(d) Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.

(e) Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months.

(f) Revoke the licence.

6.6 Policy 11 pages 29 and 30 of the SLP states that in in relation to the consideration of

6.7

residents, the Licensing Authority expects that any licence applicant will give due
consideration to the needs of Hammersmith & Fulham residents and any negative
impacts from licensable activities and business operations.

Any review of a licence would need to be evidence based and as such is best supported
by evidence from responsible authorities such as the Police or Environmental Health
to be successful.

Policy 16 pages 33 and 34 of the SLP in relation to the safety of women and girls in
licensed settings states that the Licensing Authority expects licence applications to
specifically include measures to ensure the safety of women and girls in licensed
premises. The Licensing Authority will use its powers to regulate the night-time
economy, both with specific regard to spiking incidents and more generally in relation
to violence against women and girls. This may include:

a) Using the Licensing Authority’s powers to impose conditions or revoke premises
licenses, where venues do not take sufficient measures to protect and provide support
to customers in spiking incidents;

b) Considering the prevalence, prevention and reporting of sexual harassment and
misconduct and gender-based violence in licensed premises.

¢) Requiring the presence of suitably trained and accredited door staff,

d) Require presence of CCTV, or to introduce entry searches for example.

Page 7



Licence applicants and existing licence holders are encouraged to include in their
operating schedules clear polices relating to potential abuse or violence against women
and girls.

This would include but is not limited to the ‘Ask for Angela’ programme, Welfare and
Vulnerability Engagement’ training package (WAVE) for staff to identify and assist
women and girls being at risk or being subjected to violence, and the implementation
of clear policies in the premises on preventing and addressing violence against women
and girls. The Licensing Authority would also encourage off licensed premises to take
part in the Ask for Angela scheme in an effort to increase the visible promotion of the
scheme in all licensed premises across the borough.

Implementing these measures, particularly for on-licence premises, providing training
for staff to increase awareness and provide skills and tools for identifying and assisting
when it is at risk of happening or is happening, and having clear policies against
violence against women and girls provide a solid basis for addressing the issue when
it occurs in licensed premises. Furthermore, having policies on staff reporting incidents
to Police and Council officers will help to ensure that these incidents are addressed.

As part of the Government’s and the Council’s Violence Against Women and Girls
Strategy, venues may also wish to consider boosting their security measures e.g. the
recruitment and training of additional door security staff, particularly female staff.

The Council are proud supporters of the Women’s Night Safety Charter, and we would
like to encourage all our licensed premises to consider how you and your business can
contribute to making your workplace and H&F a borough where all women feel
confident and welcome whenever and wherever they happen to be. The Women’s Night
Safety Charter is a voluntary pledge to show you take women’s safety seriously. By
signing the Charter, you show your acknowledgement of the issue and that you’re ready
to get proactive in improving women'’s safety.

6.8 Annex 4 page 52 of the SLP in relation to the grounds for considering a review states
that the Licensing Authority will regard applications for the review of any premises
licence patrticularly seriously where they involve evidence of:

a) Use of licensed premises for the sale and distribution of drugs and the laundering of
drugs money;

b) Use of licensed premises for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms and the
laundering of illegal firearms money;

c) Evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music;

d) Underage sales and consumption of alcohol,

e) Use of a licensed premises contrary to any emergency legislation requesting its
closure;

f) Use of licensed premises for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;

g) Serious risks to children;

h) Use of licensed premises for unlawful gaming and gambling;

i) Use of licensed premises as a base for organised criminal activity;

J) Use of licensed premises for the organisation of racist, homophobic, sexual abuse,
attacks or any discriminatory behaviour;

k) Use of licensed premises for storing or selling illegal alcohol or tobacco or smuggled
goods;

Page 8



I) The use of licensed premises for the sale of stolen goods;

m)Incidents of disorder;

n) Instances of public nuisance where warnings have been disregarded;

0) Serious risks to public safety which the management is unable or unwilling to correct;
p) Frequently operating outside permitted hours.

g) There may be legal implications if activity of child sexual exploitation (CSE) is taking
place on licensed premises and there has been a failure to demonstrate due diligence
or that adequate safeguards are in place — this may lead to prosecution or any of the
licensing sanctions detailed in the paragraph below.

7. THE REVIEW HEARING

In determining this application, the Committee must have regard to the representations
and take such of the following steps as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:

(a) Take no further action.

(b) Modify the conditions of the licence.

(c) Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence.
(d) Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.

(e) Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months.
(f) Revoke the licence.

Where the Committee takes a step mentioned in (b) or (c) above, it may provide that
the modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period (not exceeding three
months) as it may specify.

In making its decision, the Committee must act with a view to promoting the licensing
objectives:
e the prevention of crime and disorder
the prevention of public nuisance
public safety
protection of children from harm

It must also have regard to its own SLP and the Guidance.

If the Committee is minded to amend the licence, conditions may be attached to the
licence to alleviate the concerns raised through representations; nevertheless, this is a
matter for the Committee to determine in light of the above matters, and any others it
considers material.

Page 9



Hammersmith and Fulham Council

Application for the review of a premises licence or club
premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all

cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use

additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

(Insert name of applicant)
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description

Newsmart/JMB Food and Wine

143 Askew Road

Post town Post code (if known) W12 9AU

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if
known)
Subir Singh Bhatia

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known
2023/01949/LAPR

Part 2 - Applicant details
[ am

Please tick yes
1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)
a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

OO0 0O

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the
premises

Page 10




2) aresponsible authority (please complete (C) below) X

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) ]
below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick
Mr [ Mrs [ Miss [ ] Ms [] Other title

(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick yes
I am 18 years old or over [55]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Page 11




(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address
Hammersmith and Fulham Council — Licensing

Bill Masini

Licensing and Trading Standards Officer
45 Beavor Lane

Hammersmith

London W6 9AR

Telephone number (if any)
0208 753 1081

E-mail address (optional)
Licensing @Ibhf.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety X
3) the prevention of public huisance ]
4) the protection of children from harm X

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)

Protection of Children from Harm
¢ Sale of alcohol and “nicotine vape pens” to 13/14 years girls — Licensing Act
& Children and Families Act 2014
e Sale of nicotine vape pens to children aged 16 years -

¢ Sale of “single” cigarettes (see below)

Prevention of Crime and disorder —

o Supplying cheap illegal cigarettes in breach of Standardised Packaging of
Tobacco Products Regulations 2015

e Supplying cheap illegal cigarettes in breach of Tobacco and Related Products
Regulations 2016

e Sale of alcohol and nicotine vape pens to children — Licensing Act and
Children and Families Act 2014

e Sale of unpackaged cigarettes (“singles”) other than in their original
packaging — minimum 20 — S3 Children and Young Persons (Protection from
Tobacco) Act 1991

e Carrying on a licensable activity on the premises otherwise than under and in

Page 12




accordance with an authorisation and knowingly allowing a licensable activity
to be so carried on. (S136 Licensing Act) — breach of numerous premises

licence conditions on humerous occasions.

e Failure to produce Premises Licence or fully display a Summary of Premises
Licence

Public Safety —
e Sale of alcohol to children — Licensing Act 2003

Page 13




Background Information

A premises licence has been in existence at 143 Askew Road for many years. On 21
November 2023 the premises licence and Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS)
was transferred to Subir Singh Bhatia. The licensable hours were 10.00 — 21.00
hours. Two days later a variation was submitted seeking an extension of those hours
from 08.00-23.00 hours. There were objections to this application and the matter was
heard by the Licensing Sub-committee on 14 February 2024. Mr Bhatia offered up a
number of further conditions he would abide by if he was granted these extra hours.
The Licensing sub- committee agreed for the hours to be extended from 9.00 — 23.00
hours but added the proposed conditions to the premises licence. These conditions
are now conditions 13-19 inclusive in Annex 3 of the Premises Licence (Conditions

attached after a hearing by the licensing authority).

On 31 October 2024 Trading Standards received the following complaint. To protect

those involved no personal details are disclosed here.

“Thank you for your time on the telephone. On Sunday 27th October at 4:45pm 3 girls purchased
1 bottle of Glens Vodka from NewsMart - 143 Askew road, Shepherds Bush. They went back 10
minutes later (by now 5 girls) entered the shop, pooled their £2.50 each and counted out the
coins and bought a second bottle plus 2 vapes. They were not asked for identification. 4 of these
girls are 14 and 1 girl is 13 - school years of 9 and 10. Following drinking this vodka and vaping,
within 1.5 hours 3 of them were blacked out on the floor where family members found them and
all parents were called. Paramedics arrived and reviewed all of their conditions whereupon 3 of
the girls were admitted to Chelsea and Westminster A&E by ambulance. Two of those admitted
via ambulance went into shock and had to be blue-lighted as were arresting in the ambulance -
they did not come around until between 3-4:30am Monday. As | mentioned the girls were aware
that 143 Askew Road NewsMart doesn’t ask children for proof of identification. Whilst they had
never bought vodka there before they had purchased vapes and they had been told via
friends/peers that they sell alcohol and do not check for id.”

Her daughter was 13 years old. A couple of days after the incident the mother went
to the shop and spoke to Mr Bhatia (senior) about this and asked who had been

working on the Sunday. He told her it was his son.

On 5" November Licensing received the following on-line complaint. Again, to protect

those involved no personal details are disclosed here.

“Problem details - Licensing
1.Additional information that would help resolve the problem:
On Sunday 27th October at 4.45pm 5 girls were able to buy 2 bottles of vodka, and 2 vapes. They

Page 14




were aged 13 years and 14 years of age and were not asked for any ID. It resulted in 3 of the girls
being blue lighted by ambulance to Chelsea and Westminster where they were treated for high
levels of intoxication and were extremely ill.
Location of problem:

2.Askew Road
Additional information that would help locate the problem:
Newsmart - 143 Askew Road, Shepherds Bush,”

Both complaints were from mothers of girls who had bought and drunk the alcohol.
They had also bought and vaped nicotine vape pens. They have been spoken to in
detail. Further affected mums have contacted the Council and both Trading
Standards and Licensing have spoken to them. In correspondence one mother has

said

“IX] was in partial shut down when the ambulance came and her blood pressure was
dangerously low as we had to pull over on the side of the road in the ambulance to get her blodd
pressure back up before we continued with blue lights and sirens to Chelsea and Westminster.

She didn’t come round until 4am and we left in the ambulance around 7pm! Her temperature was

very low so she to be in a special heat blanket in the hospital”
She has since said in correspondence

“It remains a very dark day in my parenting experience and still shudder at the thought of it

happening ever again to anyone”

Timeline

4 November 2024 — underage test purchase sale

Trading Standards carried out an underage test purchase exercise in the Borough, of
which one attempt of a disposable nicotine vape was made at this premise by a 16
year 0 months old boy who was accompanied by a 16 year and 3 months girl. He
was sold a “Blue Razz’ flavoured Crystal SKD disposable vape and was not
challenged as to his age. It is an offence under The Children and Families Act 2014
to sell a nicotine inhaling product (of which a disposable vape is one) to anyone
under the age of 18 years. The seller was Mr Bhatia. Of the nine premises visited
that day this was the only premise to sell. When Trading Standards went into the
shop a few minutes later to inform the business of the test purchase he was asked if
a refused sales book or register was used. The officer was told there was not. The
business operated an EPOS system whereby goods are scanned before sale. Such

systems have the facility to activate a prompt requiring the operator to confirm the

Page 15




purchaser is either over 18, may be 18 or over, in which case ID is required to be
produced or the person is under 18 in which case the sale is refused. Checks on the
EPOS machine showed age prompt the business had not made it operational for
when selling nicotine inhaling products. Mr Bhatia was asked about the CCTV and
said it was working but he was unable to view it there and then. The officer said he
would notify him of CCTV footage he wanted to view. Since no notices were
displayed at the time about Challenge 25 being in operation at the premises, Trading
Standards supplied Mr Bhatia with such notices and told him where to display them.

6 November 2024

Trading Standards and Licensing made a joint visit to the shop with a view to handing
the Premises Licence Holder & DPS and sole director of JMB Food and Wine Ltd
(the legal business operating name), Mr Bhatia, with a letter requiring specified
CCTV footage to be produced and to carry out a full inspection to check for
compliance with the conditions on the Premises Licence which would include
checking the CCTV operation in accordance with condition 13. (see below). Mr
Bhatia was not present; just his son (Manveer) was who said he was 18, his birthday
being 27 August. He was generally uncooperative and obstructive throughout this

visit.

He was unable to produce a copy of the Premises Licence — an offence under s57

Licensing Act. One of the two pages summary was displayed on the shop window.

CCTV

Condition 13 states:

High- Definition CCTV covering the interior and exterior of the premises shall be installed and
shall be kept operational at all times the premises are open to the public. The CCTV:
a. Shall be capable of taking a head and shoulders shot of persons entering the premises
b. Shall be capable of storing images for a minimum of 31 days
c. Shall be accessible by a member of staff who is capable of downloading images for the
police or authorised council officers, and shall be on duty at all times the premises are
open, The staff member must be able to provide a police or authorised officer copies of

recent CCTV images or data with the minimum of delay when requested.

When Licensing asked him to view the CCTV he said there was CCTV but the

footage went was held remotely which he could view on his mobile phone and did

Page 16




forward to Trading Standards via WhatsAPP, footage of the recent test purchase
albeit it was not at all clear. There was no date or time stamp on the footage. The
footage was of poor quality and non-compliant with the CCTV condition. He was not
prepared to find other footage that Trading Standards were requiring though said
recordings were available back to 12 October (maximum of 26 days). It was noted
there were two “plug in” “Verisure” “domestic’ cameras, one at the front of the shop
and one at the back. Manveer said these were the cameras being used and they
were activated to operate and record only when movement was detected. He said
this was the CCTV system. A CCTV system like this allows footage that is to be
copied to be easily edited/deleted and not of the standard required. Asked about the
other more typical cameras that were secured and positioned around the shop
covering the entrance, outside, the till area and throughout the shop, plus the CCTV

Monitor (flat screen TV), he said they didn’t work and hadn’t worked for ages.

The CCTV was not being operated in accordance with condition 13. Licensable
activities cannot be conducted where there are breaches of conditions. This is

emphasised by another condition — 14 which states:

“Licensable activities shall only be carried out at the premises at times when the CCTV system is

fully operational”

Trading Standards gave Manveer a letter to pass on to his father. This related to him
attending a formal interview and also dates and times for CCTV footage to be

produced. Manveer said that would be produced.

Other matters on this visit:

1. No refused sales book or incident books could be produced when asked, this

being in breach of conditions 18 and 9 which state:

Condition 18 “A refusal book shall be kept at the premises and updated as and when required
and made available for inspection on request to a Licensing Officer, Police or other responsible

authority”

Condition 9 “An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and be made available to the police or
an authorised officer of the council upon request, the incident log shall record the following

a) All crimes reported to the venue

b) All ejections of patrons

c) Any complaints received

d) Any incidents of disorder

Page 17




e) Any faults in the CCTV system
f)  Any refusal of the sale of alcohol
g) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service”

2. Beers and stout above 5.5%ABV were on display for sale. These included:
Kestrel Super 9%
Perla Mocne 7.1%
Debowe 7%
Carlsberg Special Brew 7.5%
Oranjeboom Imported 8.5%
Lomza Jasne 5.7%
Dragon Stout 7.5%

Guinness Foreign Extra 7.5%

This was in breach of condition 19 which states:

“Beer, lager, cider and stout above 5.5% ABV shall not be displayed or sold”

The sale price of the Kestrel was checked on the till (Electronic point of sale system
[EPOS] in operation) as £2.00, this being a low retail price and not much over the UK
duty payable. Manveer was shown the illegally displayed alcohol and told it could not
be sold because the licence prevented such drinks being sold above 5.5% ABV and
they needed to be removed. Licensing put one of each of these drinks on the fridge
by the alcohol display, so there could be no misunderstandings of what drinks were

illegally displayed for sale and therefore to be removed.

3. No staff training records were produced on request, Manveer Bhatia, saying

there were not any, in breach of condition 8 which states:

“Staff shall receive training for their role on induction and refresher training every 6 months.
Training shall include identifying persons under 25, making a chalienge, acceptable proof of age,
making and recording a refusal, proxy sales, avoiding conflict and responsible alcohol retailing.
Written training logs shall be kept for all staff and these logs shall be made available to

police/local authority upon request”.

4. Condition 10 requires all alcohol to be covered from view from customers
during the hours when the premises are open outside the permitted hours for
the sale of alcohol, - so between 06:30 and 09:00 hours. This was no
evidence as to show how that could possibly be done.

5. Condition 12 requires there to be prominently displayed by the exit, notices

asking customers to respect nearby residents and to leave quietly, to not

Page 18




loiter outside the premises, nor drink in the street and to dispose of litter

responsibly. No such notices were displayed.

It became obvious this inspection was not going to be completed in Manveer's

presence, so he was given the Trading Standards’ letter to forward to his father and

told a further visit would be made in the very near future. Manveer told the officers if

they were to visit again, they needed to bring along a Punjabi interpreter because his

father spoke little English.

11 November 2024 - first visit

Licensing enforcement visited the shop with a Punjabi speaking council “LET” officer.
They spoke to Subir Bhatia [‘SB”]

Findings:

SB said he usually worked Monday to Saturday until around 6pm when his
son took over worked in the evenings. He said his wife and son worked
Sundays as he needed to rest that day. He said they were the only people
who worked in the shop. He later admitted he had not read the conditions on
the licence (see below in these findings)

The CCTV system was still not operational — again in breach of conditions 13
and 14. He said it had not been working for quite a while but could not be
more precise. Condition 9(e) (refusals and incident required this to have been
recorded but since there was no book in operation, this was not recorded
anywhere.

SB said the 2 plug-in cameras worked but he was unable demonstrate them
working by showing any footage on his mobile. He tried to speak to his son
who appeared to be the only person who could access any recordings from
this non compliant CCTV set up. He was clearly in control of all CCTV footage
and became angry with his father when he (father) wanted to see the CCTV.
Licensing was unable to see any CCTV footage. SB was reminded about the
requirement to produce CCTV footage for the times and dates in the Trading
Standards’ letter.

There were no notices displayed stating by the entry door and point of service
stating that CCTV was in use — in breach of condition 4

Condition 5 requires a Challenge 25 proof of age policy to be operated at the
premises. SB was unable to properly explain what Challenge 25 was and thus
it is reasonable to conclude that a Challenge 25 policy could not be in use at
the premise.

Still on the area of age verification to prevent children purchasing alcohol,

10
Page 19




there is a Mandatory condition at condition 1 on all premises licences where
alcohol is permitted to be sold requiring the Premises Licence holder to
ensure an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in
relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. The Designated Premises Supervisor
must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in
accordance with the age verification policy. There was no evidence to indicate
there is a policy, or if there is such a policy that it was carried out in
accordance with it. — in breach of condition 1.

Condition 6 requires notices to be displayed by the entry and point of service
stating a challenge 25 policy is in force at the premises. As stated earlier on 4
November, Trading Standards had supplied “Challenge 25” posters. Still, no
such notice was displayed by the entrance to the shop - in breach of this
condition.

There were no notices displayed stating the provisions of The Licensing Act
regarding underage and proxy sales - breach of condition 7

SB said there was no refused sale or incident book in operation — breach of
conditions 9 and 18

SB said there were no training records — breach of condition 8

The EPOS system was checked. When alcohol was scanned, the product
and price were displayed on the screen together with an “age prompt’
displayed on the screen which required action to be taken by the till operator
before the transaction could be completed. It stated, “Is customer over 187"
and displayed a date of birth, this being the youngest date that someone can
legally purchase the item. The operator has three option buttons to choose to
answer that question- “YES” (when appears customer is obviously over 25),
“PROOF” (when unsure — thinks the customer is under 25 and needs to see
acceptable form of ID) and “NO” (when obviously under 18 or proof of age is
not supplied). Where “NO” is clicked, the operator is prompted for a reason
such as “No Id proof” “Under Age’, “Already Drunk” or “Policeman in uniform”.
The EPOS did not “prompt” when disposable vapes were seeking to be
purchased.

SB was unable to produce his Premises Licence initially saying he had never
received it. When asked why only the first page of the Premises Licence
Summary was displayed, he said he had the licence and but on further
questioning said he had never read it.

The cigarettes for sale were inspected. Whilst doing so, Mr Bhatia was asked
if anyone who worked there, smoked. He replied that no one smoked in the

family. All cigarettes found on the premise were in a draw under the counter

1e1
Page 20




and out of sight from customers, as is required by law. There were only 14
packs of cigarettes in this draw but they included 8 illegal packs of cigarettes
— 4 x L&M (Duty Free and not authorised to be sold in the UK), 2 x Marlboro
Gold (Duty Free) and 2 x Marlboro Touch (originating from Turkey and a
brand not authorised to be sold in the UK). There was also one opened pack
(the cardboard top and cellophane missing) thereby exposing the cigarettes
inside. There were three missing so 17 still in the pack. This was another
pack of the Turkish Marlboro Touch. All these packs were seized because
they contravened The Tobacco and Related Products Regulations and The
Standardised Packaging of Tobacco Regulations. Mr Bhatia was asked why
there was an open pack with only 17 cigarettes left inside. He did not answer.
It is an offence under The Children and Young Persons (Protection from
Tobacco) Act 1991 for any person carrying on a retail business to sell
cigarettes to any person other than in their original packaging. This legislation
is intended to stop “Pocket money” sales of cigarettes to children.

- Conditions 15 requires all alcohol to be purchased from AWRS registered

Cash and Carry and wholesalers. Condition 16 slightly repeats this but states

“All goods, including those subject to duty payments i.e. alcohol and tobacco products
will be brought [bought] from cash and carries only an [with] invoices and they will be
available upon request. All alcohol will be purchased from AWRS registered cash and

carry or wholesalers”.

Mr Bhatia was asked about his invoices for his purchases of alcohol. He had a few in
the shop but said the rest were at home or with his accountant. Of note was an
invoice for the purchase of 6 bottles of Glens vodka on 17 October 2024, this being
the brand of vodka sold to the underage girls ten days later on 27 October. No Glens

vodka was on sale on 6" November.

11 November 2024 — second visit

Licensing returned with a formal notice requiring the production of invoices for the
following drinks since the business had been operating:

Kestrel Super 9%

Perla Mocne 7.1%

Debowe 7%

Carlsberg Special Brew 7.5%

Oranjeboom Imported 8.5%

Lomza Jasne 5.7%

Dragon Stout 7.5%

12
Page 21




!

Guinness Foreign Extra 7.5%

Mr Bhatia and his son were present. He said he would be able to produce them by 14
November. He was also reminded about production of the CCTV footage that

Trading Standards had required. They said that would also be done by then.

Whilst handing over the paperwork, Licensing noted some of those drinks above
either had not been removed from the shelves after the 6 November visit or had been
put back on since. They included Guinness Foreign Extra, Oranjeboom Imported,
Dragon Stout, Carlsberg Special Brew and Debowe. They were told to remove that

alcohol immediately and the officer assisted them in doing so.

17 November 2024

Since the invoices and CCTV footage still had not been produced Licensing revisited
to chase this up. Premises Licence Holder/DPS, Mr Bhatia, was working in the shop
and said they were with his Licensing Agent who he was going to see on 20
November and would be in contact with us. He was asked about other breaches and
whether they had been remedied. No attempt had been made to address the
previously identified breaches. Licensing did however notice in the “alcohol fridge”
cans of Oranjeboom Imported (8.5% ABV) and bottles of Guinness Foreign Extra
(7.5% ABV) were back on display for sale. The Oranjeboom was scanned for a
selling price; £1.80/can — not much more than the UK Duty payable on such a high
strength beer. The expected price for such a drink purchased through legal channels
would be around the £2.40-£2.50 mark. The Guinness was priced at £1.99.

Mr Bhatia said his wife must have put it back on sale. He was told to remove it from

the shop.

27 November 2024

Licensing and Trading Standards still had not heard from Mr Bhatia or received any
documentation or CCTV and so Licensing visited the shop yet again, only to find that
bottles of the Guinness Foreign Extra beer were still on sale. The officer spoke to his

Licensing Agent, who said no CCTV or invoices would be produced.

9 December 2024

Mr Bhatia was interviewed under caution by Trading Standards and Licensing. Also
present was his Licensing Agent and an “Approved” Interpreter. A summary of his
answers are as follows:

e He, his wife and son are the only people who work at the shop

13
Page 22




He had never worked or run a similar business before this

The only training he had to run the business was the course he took in order
to gain his personal licence

He was unable to explain what “Challenge 25" was and when to use it.

He recalled the sale of the nicotine vape on 4 November

He said the shop was very busy with customers and a colleague or another
person must have sold it

Having then been shown a clip of CCTV supplied by his son, he accepted
there were no other customers in the shop and only one person serving and
so he may have sold the nicotine vape

He was aware the legal age to sell nicotine vapes was 18

Having been shown a photo of the girl and boy he said their age could be 16
or possibly 13

He said he had made a mistake

He was unable to explain how the EPOS “till prompt” worked and accepted
nicotine vapes were not programmed to prompt the seller to check for proof of
age

He said he always checked people’s age but was unable to show any
evidence of refused sales

He said he had no grounds to believe the business had made any other
underage sales and no one had ever complained to him about this

He said no one in the family smoked.

In relation to the illegal cigarettes found in the shop on 11 November he said
someone had given him the cigarettes to sell but he didn’t usually sell
cigarettes

He was unaware it was illegal to sell these cigarettes from the shop

He didn’t question himself that they looked different to other cigarettes sold in
in the UK and was not paying attention

He was given the cigarettes by a Punjabi man who he had never met before
He was given them the day before the seizure

All the packs were sealed

The open pack may have dropped on the floor and the pack fell open

The beers above the 5.5% ABV were also given to him by another Punjabi
man who came into the shop and said he could have them because he had
just sold his shop and had some extra beers.

He did not know this man

He had never heard of the AWRS (Alcohol Wholesalers Registration Scheme

14
Page 23




operated by HMRC)

When prompted it would have been covered in his personal licence course,
he remembered it meant he had to pay taxes on products

He was unable to explain why he had said he would supply invoices for these
items or why he had not mentioned this to The Licensing Officer when he had
visited asking where these invoices were.

He said the shop takings were about £5k per week and mark up was between
10 and 50%

His son worked there 2-3 hours a day

He accepted that on the personal licence course he had been taught about
not selling illegal goods like tobacco and alcohol and never to buy goods from
people off the street

He accepted he had ignored that advice

He was unable to explain even the most basic responsibilities a DPS had in
relation to the sale of alcohol by his staff.

He said his son and wife were not authorised to sell alcohol if he was not
present in the shop

Pressed on this (inaccurate) answer, he accepted his son may sell alcohol
when he was not there but there were no cameras for him to see that

When explained that virtually all conditions had been breached, he said he
had made mistakes but it was not done on purpose

He said he didn’t know some of the things on his licence

When asked he said he was in control of his business

Asked why the over strength beers kept returning the shelves after having
been told to remove them, he said it was an unintentional mistake. Some had
been put in the bin but must have been taken out and put back on display by
someone

Regarding the CCTV and why it was not produced, as had been required, he
said the system may have been done, that he was getting someone to repair
it and once done he would send it

He said it went wrong about a month ago

Asked how long it retained recorded footage he said it was on a “loop” and
normally it was for a day, though some days, three days but he didn't really
check it

When told the requirement was 31 days minimum, he said “yes but we
couldn’t find anything”

He accepted he was unable to view the footage from the two “Verisure

18
Page 24




cameras” and was dependant on his son showing him it

When it was explained that his son had said on 6 November that there was
footage back to 12 October, asked why footage for 27 October was not
provided to Trading Standards, he replied, “I'm not sure, I've not asked him”
The main reason for the interview and why he had inspections was then
explained. He was asked who was working in the shop at that time, to which
he said it was him

Asked how he could be so sure it was him he said because he always worked
Sunday evenings

Asked if he had knowledge of this underage sale allegation, he said he did
know but never sold to anyone who was underage.

He did not answer why his answer was different to that given earlier about
receiving any complaints, merely saying again he did not sell products to
underage children

He recalled the mother coming into his shop on the Monday but did not make
a record of complaints. He was aware of ambulances being called.

He said he asked the girls for ID to show their age and they were 18/19, so he
sold.

He repeated that he only sold such items if someone produces ID

It was put to him that he had said to the mother it was his son working that
day and that officers had been told it was a young male who had made the
sales, to which he replied it was him and it could not have been his son

He then went on to say one girl in the shop showed her ID and she was 20
years old

Questioned on that, he said she produced a driving licence and a passport
Once the details were explained about the numbers of girls involved and how
they “pooled” their money to pay for the items he then said there was only
one girl in the shop and the others were standing outside

Asked if he was lying to protect his son, he said he knew it was him working

in the shop at that time.

Other relevant information

The mother who visited the shop after the sales has supplied her 13-year-old

daughter’s pre-payment card statement which shows her daughter’s contributions

towards the purchases, the date shown being applied the following day — as is

normal. There were two transactions and the statement is produced with this

16
Page 25




application and identified with the mark WRM 1.

Conclusions and recommendations

This application for a review of the premises licence has been made following a very
serious incident that was reported to have occurred on 27 October 2024 where vodka
and nicotine inhaling products in the form of disposable nicotine vapes were
purchased by a group of local girls aged between 13 and 14. Had it not been for the
swift action and professionalism of London’s Ambulance Service and those
professionals at The Chelsea and Westminster Hospital this application may well

have been referring to fatalities.

No CCTV footage has been produced by The Premises Licence Holder, despite his
son saying there was footage back to 12 October, though of course the son’s claim
cannot be verified. The sub- Committee is invited to draw the conclusion that no such
footage (albeit in a non-compliant format in terms of compliance with licence
condition 13) was produced for the sole reason that it was self-criminating. Having
read this application up to this stage it should be clear by now that it was unlikely to
have ever been produced to authorised officers. It is not possible to say whether the
properly installed CCTV system which has been identified by those at the shop as
not working at this particular time was in fact working but deliberately destroyed soon
after the mother went to the shop. The sub-committee is invited to treat the breach of
the CCTV as seriously as the sale of vodka (37.5% ABV) (and vapes) to teenage
girls; girls being as much as five years under the legal age to purchase these
products. Their mothers are adamant they look their actual age and any person who
had been properly trained should have refused the attempted sale or, in the worst
case scenario, required acceptable proof of age which would not have been
forthcoming.

Since there was a “till prompt” on the EPOS till system, for those sales to have taken
place a positive action of approving the sales had to be taken by the seller on both

occasions within a short time.

Despite at least one mother going to the shop and trying to discuss these matters
with the Premise Licence holder just a day after the incident, not even a week later
on 4 November, Mr Bhatia failed a Trading Standards’ test purchase of a disposable

vape pen to a 16 year old.

17
Page 26




Virtually all conditions on the Premises Licence have been breached. These
breaches have continued when Licensing Enforcement has carried out further visits
with no attempts made to comply with the conditions, not even simple ones such as

the display of notices required by some conditions.

Alcohol in the form of beer and stout has continued to be placed back on display for
sale in breach of the maximum strength of 5.5%ABV - condition 19. No invoices have

ever been produced for their purchase.

lllegal tobacco was found on the premises and no adequate explanation has been

given for the “open” pack of cigarettes.

Hammersmith and Fulham Licensing say the answers given under caution, many of
which contradict what was previously said to officers, lack any credibility and show
how badly the business has been run, with a general disregard to legal

responsibilities and in particular to young people.

Hammersmith and Fulham Licensing say the Licensing Objectives have not been
promoted and there is a complete lack of confidence in The Premises Licence Holder
being able to promote these in the future. The conditions on the premises Licence if
read, and followed, would have prevented these incidents from occurring. The
Premises Licence Holder here is also the Designated Premises Supervisor and so
has a Personal Licence, following formal training. The Personal Licence was only
obtained just over a year ago in late 2023 and all that was learnt has been totally
disregarded. Further, the Variation submitted by the Premises Licence Holder in
November 2023, that led to a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing on 14 February
2024 revolved around the applicant proposing to the Sub-Committee, six further
conditions to be added to the licence if the licensable hours were increased. These
have all been breached. The Licensing Sub-Committee’s decision has been

dismissed.

Instead of engaging with the relevant authorities, The Premises Licence
Holder/Designated Premises Supervisor has shown a complete disregard for his

responsibilities and to those damaged by and/or affected by his actions.

Licensing is therefore saying the addition of further conditions would not be

appropriate, nor would a long period of suspension.

18
Page 27




The Licensing Sub-Committee is therefore invited to strongly consider revocation of

the Premises Licence.

19
Page 28




Page intentionally blank

20
Page 29




Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before ]

If yes please state the date of that application
Day Month Year

B E RS

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state
what they were and when you made them

Please tick yes
= | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible X
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate
| understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements X
my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION

21
Page 30




Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what
capacity.

Signature

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you wotld prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems
which are included in the grounds for review if available.

3. The application form must be signed.

4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf
provided that they have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this
application.

22
Page 31




CWRM L

08:14 o 5C @G
(Ot Cancel
Filters: [ In ] [ Out ] [ Regular ] [ Date V]

[ Amount V]
Wed, 6th Nov

Mon, 28th Oct

JMB FOOD AND WINE -£6.00

JMB FOOD AND WINE -£2.30

© BOOTS,LONDON -£14.99
-£15.60

© B0OTS 1132 -£8.80

Page 32



Licensing Act 2003 h &ff\/‘
Premises Licence hammersmith & fulham

Premises Licence Number: 2023/01949/LAPR

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, OS map reference or description of
the premises

JMB Food And Wine

143 Askew Road

Post town: London Post code: W12 9AU

Telephone:

Where the licence is time limited the dates:

Not Applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Sale of Alcohol Off the Premises

The licence authorises the carrying out of the following licensable activities
on the days and at the times specified below:

Sale of Alcohol Off the Premises

Monday to Sunday 09:00 - 23:00

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday to Sunday 06:30 - 23:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and

/ or off supplies:

Off the premises only

Page 1 of 8
Page 33



Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant)
of holder of premises licence:

Mr Subir Singh Bhatia

Email

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity
number (where applicable):
Not Applicable

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol:

Mr Subir Singh Bhatia

Licensing Authority: London Borough Of Hounslow
Personal Licence Number: H06353

Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions

1. Mandatory Condition

1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an
age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the
age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce
on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date
of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

22.04.20242018/01747/LAPR Page 2 of 8
Page 34



2. Mandatory Condition
1.A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption
on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b)"permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula—

P=D+ (DxV)
where—
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a premises licence—
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under
such a licence;
(d) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in
question; and
(e) "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart
from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph
rounded up to the nearest penny.

4(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on
the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value
added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies
of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on
the second day.

3. Mandatory Condition

(1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

(2) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised
by a person who holds a personal licence.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

22.04.20242018/01747/LAPR Page 3 of 8
Page 35



4. Notices shall be prominently displayed at the premises by the entry door and point
of service stating that CCTV is in use.

5. A Challenge 25 proof of age policy shall be operated at the premises. The only
acceptable forms of identification shall be a photographic driving licence, a valid
passport or a proof of age card with the bearer's photograph and the PASS logo in a
hologram format.

6. Notices shall be prominently displayed at the premises by the entry and point of
service stating that a challenge 25 policy is in force at the premises.

7. Notices shall be prominently displayed at the premises stating the provisions of the
Licensing Act regarding underage and proxy sales.

8. Staff shall receive training for their role on induction and refresher training every 6
months. Training shall include identifying persons under 25, making a challenge,
acceptable proof of age, making and recording a refusal, proxy sales, avoiding conflict
and responsible alcohol retailing. Written training logs shall be kept for all staff and
these logs shall be made available to police / local authority upon request.

9. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and be made available to the police
or an authorised officer of the council upon request, the incident log shall record the
following;

a) all crimes reported to the venue;

b) all ejections of patrons;

c) any complaints received;

d) any incidents of disorder;

e) any faults in the CCTV system;

f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol; and

g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

10. During the hours when the premises are open outside the permitted hours for the
sale of alcohol, all alcohol shall be covered from view from customers.

11. Alcohol shall only be supplied in sealed containers for consumption off the
premises. No alcohol shall be consumed on the premises at any time.

12. Notices shall be prominently displayed by the exit asking customers to respect
nearby residents and to leave quietly, to not loiter outside the premises nor drink in
the street and to dispose of litter responsibly.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

13. High-Definition CCTV covering the interior and exterior of the premises shall be
installed and shall be kept operational at all times the premises are open to the
public. The CCTV:

o shall be capable of taking a head and shoulders shot of persons entering the
premises.

o shall be capable of storing images for a minimum of 31 days.

o shall be accessible by a member of staff who is capable of downloading images for

22.04.20242018/01747/LAPR Page 4 of 8
Page 36



the police or authorised council officers, and shall be on duty at all times the premises
are open. This staff member must be able to provide a police or authorised council
officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the minimum of delay when
requested.

14. Licensable activities shall only be carried out at the premises at times when the
CCTV system is fully operational.

15. All alcohol shall be purchased from AWRS registered cash & carry and
wholesalers.

16. All goods, including those subject to duty payments i.e., alcohol and tobacco
products will be brought from cash and carries only an invoices and they will be
available upon request. All alcohol will be purchased from AWRS registered cash &
carry or wholesalers.

17. All staff employed at the premises will have UK right to work status checked, once
passed that stage they shall be offered employment.

18. A refusal book shall be kept at the premises and updated as and when required,
and made available for inspection on request to a Licensing Officer, Police or other
responsible authority.

19. Beer, lager, cider and stout above 5.5% ABV shall not be displayed or sold.

Signed: @ﬂ Date: 14.02.2024

Authorised Officer

22.04.20242018/01747/LAPR Page 5 of 8
Page 37



Annex 4- Plans:

Please insert plans at page 6

22.04.20242018/01747/LAPR Page 6 of 8
Page 38



Licensing Act 2003 h &ff\/‘
Premises Licence hammersmith & fulham

Premises Licence Summary

Premises Licence Number: 2023/01949/LAPR

Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, OS map reference or description of
the premises

JMB Food And Wine
143 Askew Road

Post town: London Post code: W12 9AU
Telephone:

Where the licence is time limited the dates:
Not Applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:
Sale of Alcohol Off the Premises

The licence authorises the carrying out of the following licensable activities
on the days and at the times specified below:

Sale of Alcohol Off the Premises
Monday to Sunday 09:00 - 23:00

The opening hours of the premises:
Monday to Sunday 06:30 - 23:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /
or off supplies:

Off the premises only

22.04.20242018/01747/LAPR Page 7 of 8
Page 39



Name, (registered) address, of holder of premises licence:

Mr Subir Singh Bhatia

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number
(where applicable):

Not Applicable

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol:

Mr Subir Singh Bhatia

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:

No Restrictions

i
Signed: Q@ﬂ Date: 14.02.2024

Authorised Officer

22.04.20242018/01747/LAPR Page 8 of 8
Page 40



A _ TEDw

. ——

.wl -
A 0 -~
“ SHELVING P .
M i il
3 e . )
.... T"V'.Ml.@ S =0 3 ﬁm nt\. w
SHELvING $ 2 I
. ~r > L) N
o 3 E = T e 2
- 2 uw. Al F
...m N . ﬂ-ocllﬂﬂ. s N Covmen
oy » e, s
. g
g - N “‘&E’%ﬂ J——
B
= B ..
AT orin, T

B ooy
%2 Askad Ravin

LonNdDon Wi g Ay

s PNW) W LicedSEn
@ Rre evtwiguisae

H Az ex

Page 41



2+ AR 1

- . L_| = W . = ~
O 40 - ® . o
[
. . ¥ * * - - o
[ # * ® ~
L] - -
o0 i " . E - - ~
. - . * *
] *
L] - Ll
- . O
[ -
- - - o - " - ] &
] - o
J "
0 - - L L] - . L]
- -
] " ] .
o0 . * . ]
. . [ .
- W = . " ] - & ]
" . ® ] = . " . .
.
]
. 5 . - - . -
.
. . *
L u X " L] o L]
.
] - L] "
o . L = o ] -
- -
- - " B
= . 'y L . ¥ * 1) . . *
. W = . # - W -
. - * = . o .
= L -
- -
] * . ~ ® . ~
= E .
- - ]
N . o - - . - - =
= & ® - -
- g - " . [ -
- - ] . ] [
L] - =
- . * . .
*
# : [ " . * -
- - -
[ . .
- N - - N ' ; ' :
" - .
. £ . L . .
= : :
[ = [
] L] . - - o
» - [ ,
= - " *
. [] . . . . _
. " - . =
® & - "
- - L] .
B = - = . A
- ] . . *
] [ “ N
. . o = .
L] - -
. . O > 0 - O - .
2k N : .
- ] * o " .
* .
L L)
. . - . " - [
# #
. - .
a " . - - O
L] L] -
* o# [ ~ . [
" . " » = - W
- -
[ . [ [ ®
. - . o o
Ll L
L - - ]
. C = . "
] * . 0
- .
= ] = - 0 0 o .
-
* =
[ ] L]
[ . * .
- L -
. . . . | -
- (]
. - . -
* . ]
. . - .
L] o "
L) -
- L]
- =
s ¥ & W
C = "
® ] L]
. o g U .
.
- * ] . *
- & ] ® - [ -
o
. .
-
-
. ks . - u -
- L
® * 5
L] o
- * .
=
-
- .
* # - #

oo
©
S
3

21/01/2025, 17:52:45
. Licensing Points
ArcGIS Web AppBuilder

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 OS Licence No. AC0000808631.

Property Gazetteer
Within Borough



Trading Monday to
Ref.no. name ADDRESS ACTIVITY Sunday Monday Tuesday |[Wednesday| Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday
Dimco 30 Wood
2024/01279 Buildings LaneLondon Performance 08:00:00 -
/LAPR (28-30) W12 7DT  of Dance 01:00:00
Exhibition of a ' 08:00:00 -
Film 01:00:00
Indoor 08:00:00 -
Sporting Event 01:00:00
Performance 08:00:00 -
of Live Music 01:00:00
Playing of
Recorded 08:00:00 -
Music 01:00:00
Entertainment
- Similar to
S Music or 08:00:00 -
i Dance 01:00:00
w Performance 08:00:00 -
of a Play 01:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 01:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |10:00:00 -
Premises 01:00:00
Chipotle Westfield
Mexican London
Grill - Unit |Shopping Sale of Alcohol
2023/01123/SU2067 - CentreAriel |On and Off the 11:00:00 -
/LAPR Level 50 WayLondon Premises 23:00:00




vt abed

Puttshack

Units 0237,
2024/01175 1234, 1235
/LAPR And 1236

Relay
Square -
Westfield
London
2022/00062 (Open
JLAPR Space)

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Indoor
Sporting Event

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Performance
of Dance
Exhibition of a
Film
Performance
of Live Music

09:30:00 -
01:00:00

09:30:00 -
01:00:00

23:00:00 -
01:30:00

09:30:00 -
01:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00



Playing of

Recorded 09:00:00 -
Music 23:00:00
Entertainment

Similar to

Music or 09:00:00 -
Dance 23:00:00
Performance 09:00:00 -
of a Play 23:00:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:00:00 -

Premises 23:00:00
Westfield
o London
S TOCA Social Shopping
i 2023/01326 - Unit CentreAriel |Performance 09:30:00 -
o1 /LAPR SU0079C WayLondon of Live Music |01:30:00
Playing of
Recorded 09:30:00 -
Music 01:30:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment |01:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 01:00:00
Westfield
London
Shopping
2023/01979 CentreAriel Performance 08:00:00 -

/LAPR Vue Cinema WaylLondon of Dance 03:30:00



9t abed

Westfield
Shopping
Centre -
Phase 2
2022/00063 (Open
JLAPR Spaces)

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Exhibition of a
Film
Performance
of Live Music
Playing of
Recorded

Music
Entertainment
Similar to
Music or
Dance
Performance
of a Play

Late Night
Refreshment
Sale of Alcohol
On the
Premises

Performance
of Dance
Exhibition of a
Film
Performance
of Live Music
Playing of
Recorded
Music

00:00:00 -
00:00:00
08:00:00 -
03:30:00

08:00:00 -
03:30:00

08:00:00 -
03:30:00
08:00:00 -
03:30:00
23:00:00 -
05:00:00

08:00:00 -
02:30:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00



/v abed

Westfield

Shopping

Centre
2022/00061 (Open
/LAPR Spaces)

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Entertainment
Similar to
Music or
Dance
Performance
of a Play

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Performance
of Dance
Exhibition of a
Film
Performance
of Live Music
Playing of
Recorded

Music
Entertainment

Similar to
Music or
Dance
Performance
of a Play

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00



2022/01678 Marks And
/LAPR Spencer

-
QD
«Q
)
& 2024/00663

/LAPR Waitrose

2022/00441
/LAPR Salt Yard

Store
BWestfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GA

Store
EWestfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GA

Unit
1026Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GA

Late Night
Refreshment
Sale of Alcohol
Off the
Premises

Sale of Alcohol
On the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

23:00:00 -
00:00:00

07:00:00- 07:00:00 -
22:00:00 22:00:00

10:00:00 - /10:00:00 -
22:00:00 22:00:00

08:00:00 -
23:00:00

08:00:00 -
23:00:00

23:00:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

07:00:00 -
22:00:00

10:00:00 -
22:00:00

07:00:00 -
22:00:00

10:00:00 -
22:00:00

07:00:00 -
22:00:00

10:00:00 -
22:00:00

07:00:00 -
22:00:00

10:00:00 -
22:00:00

10:00:00 -
18:00:00

10:00:00 -
18:00:00



61 abed

2022/00441
/LAPR Salt Yard

2024/01087
/LAPR

2024/01432
/LAPR Busaba

Unit

1026Westfi

eld London

Shopping

CentreAriel |Sale of Alcohol

WayLondon On and Off the

W12 7GA  Premises

Unit

1026AWest

field

London

Shopping

CentreAriel

WayLondon Indoor

W12 7GA  Sporting Event
Playing of
Recorded
Music
Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Unit

1027Westfi

eld London

Shopping

CentreAriel

WayLondon Exhibition of a

W12 7GA  Film
Playing of
Recorded
Music

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:00:00 -
01:00:00

09:00:00 -
01:00:00



2020/00218 Copper

/LAPR Chimney
o
)
Q
o)
Ul
o
2024/00176
/LAPR

Unit
1028Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GB

Unit
1029Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GB

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

23:00:00 -
01:00:00

09:00:00 -
01:00:00

08:00:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

08:00:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00



Unit

1030Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2021/01607 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Wagamama (W12 7GB Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Unit
1031 Westfi
o eld London
g Shopping
g CentreAriel Playing of
P 2014/01612 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Mandaloun ‘W12 7GA  Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Unit
1033 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2022/00558 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -

/LAPR The Bull W12 7GA  Music 00:00:00



Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the 09:30:00 -

Premises 00:00:00
Unit
1034 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2024/00226 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR W12 7GA  Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00
§ Sale of Alcohol
@ On and Off the |09:30:00 -
3 Premises 00:00:00
Unit
1035Westfi

Sticks 'N' eld London
Sushi, Level Shopping
30 And 40, |CentreAriel Playing of
2024/00669 Southern WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Terrace W12 7GA  Music 01:30:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 01:30:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the 09:30:00 -
Premises 01:00:00



€g abed

2008/03511
/LAPR

2022/00180
/LAPR

2022/02063
/LAPR

Kiosk

1021 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GB

M&S
Kitchen

Unit
1053AWest
field
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WaylLondon

Flat Iron W12 7GD

Unit
1071Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
Bill's WayLondon
Restaurants W12 7GB

Late Night 23:00:00 -

Refreshment 00:00:00

Sale of Alcohol

On the 10:00:00 - 10:00:00 -
Premises 23:00:00 23:00:00
Performance 11:00:00 -

of Live Music 23:30:00

Playing of

Recorded 07:00:00- 07:00:00 -
Music 00:00:00 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -

Refreshment 00:00:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the 11:00:00 -

Premises 23:30:00
Playing of

Recorded 09:30:00 -
Music 00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

07:00:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

07:00:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

07:00:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

08:00:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
22:30:00

08:00:00 -
00:00:00



Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -

Premises 00:00:00
Unit
1072Westfi
eld London
Shopping
Gourmet  CentreAriel Playing of
2024/01474 Burger WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Kitchen W12 7GB  |Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment |00:30:00
§ Sale of Alcohol
@ On and Off the |09:30:00 -
g Premises 00:00:00
Unit
1073 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel |Playing of
2020/00675 The Real WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Greek W12 7GB  |Music 00:00:00

Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00



Unit

1074 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2022/02135 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Wahaca W12 7GB  Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Unit
1075Westfi
o eld London
g Shopping
g CentreAriel Playing of
O 2023/01944 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Rosa's Thai W12 7GB  Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Unit
1076Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2023/01625 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -

/LAPR Zizzi W12 7GB  Music 00:00:00



9G abed

2021/00131
/LAPR

2015/01531 Patisserie

/LAPR

Concerto

Unit
1089AWest
field
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GB

Kiosk

2004 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GE

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
01:00:00
23:00:00 -
01:30:00

09:30:00 -
01:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00



/G abed

2024/01138 Comptoir
/LAPR Libanais

Shawa
2021/00862 Westfield
/LAPR Unit K2014

2024/00897

/LAPR Pho

Kiosk

2013Westfi

eld London

Shopping

CentreAriel Playing of

WayLondon Recorded
W12 7GE Music
Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the

Premises
Kiosk

2014Westfi
eld London
Shopping

CentreAriel
WayLondon

W12 7GE
Kiosk

2015Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GE

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

10:00:00 -
19:00:00



8G abed

Kiosk

2016Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2019/00502 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Catch Me |W127GE  Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Unit
2024CWestf
ield London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2015/00901 Caffe WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Concerto W12 7GF Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Kiosk
2024 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2022/00269 Tapas WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -

/LAPR Revolution ‘W12 7GF Music 00:00:00



Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -

Premises 00:00:00
Unit
2133Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
2020/00293 WayLondon | Late Night 23:00:00 -
/LAPR Seoul Bird W12 7GF Refreshment 00:00:00
Sale of Alcohol
- On and Off the |09:30:00 -
S Premises 00:00:00
@ Unit
3 2134Westfi
eld London
Shopping
Mrs Chew's CentreAriel Playing of
2021/00223 Chinese WayLondon Recorded 23:00:00 -
/LAPR Kitchen W12 7GE  Music 00:00:00

Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00



Unit

2136Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2019/01688 Bleecker St. 'WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Burger W12 7GE Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Unit 3101-
3104Westfi
eld London
g-? Shopping
Lc% CentreAriel
8 2023/01113 WayLondon Late Night 23:00:00 -
/LAPR Nando's W12 7GF Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Unit 3123-
3125Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2024/00208 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Byron W12 7GF  Music 00:30:00

Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00



Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -

Premises 00:00:00
Unit
3125AWest
field
London
Shopping
CentreAriel |Playing of
2021/01501 Spaghetti WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR House W12 7GF  Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment |00:30:00
- Sale of Alcohol
S On and Off the 1 09:30:00 -
g _ Premises 00:00:00
[N Unit
3126Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel |Playing of
2024/00386 Pizza WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Express W12 7GF Music 00:30:00

Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00



Unit

2106Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2023/00450 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Tortilla W12 7GF  Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:00:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
K2000A The
VillageWest
field
g-? London
Lc% Shopping
N Caffe CentreAriel
2018/01220 Concerto | WayLondon Late Night 23:00:00 -
/LAPR Kiosk W12 7GF Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Kiosk
2013AWest
field
London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2022/00011 Unit WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -

/LAPR K2013A W12 7GE  Music 00:00:00



€9 abed

2019/00262
/LAPR

Kiosk
2016AWest
field
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
Master Bao ‘W12 7GE

Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:00:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the 09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00

Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the 09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00



From: Nicole.Sondh@met.police.uk

Sent: 17 January 2025 15:43

To: Licensing HF: H&F <licensing@Ibhf.gov.uk>

Cc: AWMailbox-LicensingFH@met.police.uk

Subject: Licensing Review - Police Supporting Representation

To Licensing,

RE: Licensing Review Application — JMB Food and Wine, 143 Askew Road, W12
9AU - 2024/02117/LAPRR

Please find attached Police Supporting Representation for the above Licensing review.
Kind Regards

Nicole

PC Nicole SONDH 2438AW

Hammersmith and Fulham Police Licensing Unit

Address: Hammersmith and Fulham Police Station, 226 Shepherds Bush Road,
London, W6 7NX

Page 64



METROPOLITAN

POLICE

To -
Hammersmith and Fulham Council
Licensing

From-

PC Nicole SONDH 2438AW

Metropolitan Police Service

Hammersmith and Fulham Police Licensing

RE: Licensing Review — JMB Food and Wine, 143 Askew Road, London, W12 9AU -
2023/001949/LAPR

Premises Licence Review Application Number — 2024/02117/LAPRR

| am a Police Licensing officer for the borough of Hammersmith and Fulham acting on behalf of the
chief officer of the Metropolitan Police.

The Metropolitan Police fully support the application for review of the above Premise Licence. lItis
clear from the report submitted by the council that the premises has not been promoting the licensing
objectives and those of particular concern to Police in the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and in the
Protection of Children from Harm.

As detailed in the report provided by the Local Authority Licensing team it is unacceptable and
concerning that children were able to purchase alcohol from the premises without challenge
undermining the Licensing objective in the Protection of Children from Harm.

It is also noted on the report the continuous breach of conditions that the premises demonstrated
throughout the council’s investigation and the impact that this would have had on crime and disorder in
the area. Within the local vicinity of the premises there is a high level of street drinking, the products
that are often favourable to those who drink on the street are often high strength (beers, lagers or
stouts above 5.5%) and of low value to purchase, which is why Police propose the following condition
for off licences in the local area;

‘Beer, lager and stout above 5.5% ABV shall not be displayed or sold’

The Licence holder was reminded of this condition during the investigation by the Local Authority and
asked to remove the products that breached this. He showed a complete disregard to the request by
placing the prohibited products back on display less than a week later. The continuous non-
compliance leads Police to have a complete lack of faith in the premises licence holder and their ability
to promote the licensing objectives. Failing to comply with premises licence conditions places more
children at risk of harm and further risk of anti-social behaviour in the local area, in turn increasing the
risking of crime and disorder. The Metropolitan Police therefore supports the Local Authority’s
application to revoke the premises licence.

Page 65



Trading Standards
Hammersmith Town Hall London, W6 9JU

e ~
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham h S f\//

hammersmith & fulham

Tel: 07771 806 923
Email: doug.love@Ibhf.gov.uk
Web: www.lbhf.gov.uk

To: LBHF Licensing Team
Date: 10/01/25

Please ask for: Doug Love

LICENSING ACT 2003: REPRESENTATIONS BY RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY

Premises licence 2023/01949/LAPR
JMB Food & Wine Ltd t/a Newsmart, 143 Askew Road, W12 9AU

Trading Standards representation to review application

1. Following the application to review this premises licence, made by Bill Masini of the LBHF Licensing
Team, | wish to make the following representation to outline Trading Standards’ knowledge of the
business and to recommend the revocation of the licence.

2. The only dealings Trading Standards have had with this business since JMB F&W Ltd took over the
operation of the shop was on 24/11/23, when a volunteer working with Trading Standards visited the
shop and undertook a test purchase with the intention of seeing whether the business would require
proof of age before selling a nicotine vape. The volunteer was female, aged 18 years and 7 months and
ID was requested. No sale was made when no ID was produced.

3. | can confirm that the application accurately reports on the Trading Standards issues following the
complaint made at the end of October 2024, but | wish to add the following additions.

4. | have attached, as Appendix 1, photographs of the two underage volunteers who visited the shop on 4%
November. The photographs were taken on the night of the test purchase and show them as they
appeared during the time they were in the shop. | have seen the passport of the male volunteer and
can confirm that it shows he was born in mid-October 2008, making him only just 16 at the time of the
sale.

5. There has not, at any time, been a reason given to explain why the requested CCTV for the time of the
alleged sale to the 13- & 14-year-old girls on Sunday 27" October 2024 was not provided, despite the
Licensee’s son initially confirming that recordings were available back to 12t October.

6. Trading Standards prioritise work to prevent illegal tobacco from being available in the borough because
ready availability of cheap tobacco is known to make it easier for people to start smoking, harder for
them to quit, and smokers tend to smoke more, exacerbating the health inequalities suffered by poorer
communities.

7. There were only a few packs of illicit cigarettes seized, but that is not necessarily an indication of how
much illicit tobacco had been sold by the business, or may have been in future had the business not
come to our attention. In my experience, many businesses who make regular sales will only keep
minimal amounts on the premises, with the rest being kept where it is less likely to be found. | have
attached annotated photographs of samples of the cigarettes seized by Mr Masini, as Appendix 2.

Page 66



8. Mr Bhatia, when he was interviewed by Mr Masini and myself (with an interpreter provided), showed
himself to be totally ill-equipped to manage a licensed premises, unable to describe the basic elements
of running such a business legally, or in accordance with the Licensing Act objectives. There were also
several answers he gave in the interview — that he had made no payment for the illicit tobacco and
alcohol products identified at the shop; that he did not know it was illegal to sell cigarettes that were
clearly intended for a foreign market or in branded packaging which has not been allowed in the UK for
nearly ten years; that the opened pack of cigarettes had not been intentionally opened, for instance —
that could not have possibly been true.

Recommendations

9. Even if only those matters described which have been witnessed by officers are considered, there is
no doubt that Mr Bhatia has failed both to manage a licensed business to a standard that could be
considered the minimum acceptable, or to give any confidence that he could, in future, manage it
well.

10. Although the Committee will not hear from the victims directly, | think there is no doubt that, as
alleged, there were repeated sales of alcohol and vapes to groups of girls only just into their teenage
years were made on 27" October, either by Mr Bhatia (who claimed only he was working in the
interview under caution) or by his son (mentioned by the complainants and previously identified by
Mr Bhatia as typically working on Sundays).

11. It seems inconceivable that any person this young could have been mistaken for over 18, let alone
25 (below which the licence requires age verification). Here, there were said to be five in the shop
(although Mr Bhatia gave a contradictory version, denying this, in interview) and the only reasonable
conclusion must be that they were believed to be underage by the seller.

12. Mr Bhatia failed, without any valid explanation, to provide CCTV footage of these incidents, despite
the initial indication that it was available. This can only, in my opinion, have been an attempt to
obscure exactly what happened and / or the identity of the seller on that day.

13. The premises licence should, in my opinion, be revoked by the Licensing Sub-Committee.
14. Trading Standards are proceeding with a criminal investigation, that will cover the underage sale,
the illicit tobacco and alcohol found in the shop and the breaches of licence conditions. No decision

on an outcome has been made yet, but the matter is undoubtedly of a nature serious enough for
legal proceedings against the company and director, Mr Bhatia, to be considered.

| believe this representation is consistent with the LBHF Statement of Licensing Policy and the promotion
of the Licensing Objectives.

Doug Love
Lead Practitioner, Trading Standards

Page 67



Appendix 1

Page 68



Sam/es of cigarettes seize.'
Duty-free Marlboro Gold and L&M Blue; Turkish market Marlboro Touch

FOR
DUTY FREE SALE
ONLY

'
The Marlboro Gold and L&M were marked ‘FOR DUTY FREE SALE ONLY’;
The Marlboro Touch has a Turkish tax stamp — unlike anything on UK packs — attached.

The opened pack, containing 17 cigarettes, with the top torn off.
Mr Bhatia confirmed, in the interview, that no staff at the business smoked
and suggested that it had been opened accidentally.

Page 69



From: I

Sent: 15 January 2025 18:28

To: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@Ibhf.gov.uk>

Cc: Masini Bill: H&F <Bill.Masini@I|bhf.gov.uk>; Love Doug: H&F <Doug.Love@I|bhf.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: Newsmart - application to review licence

RE: Incident Sunday 27th October 2024- Alcohol being sold to minors - Askew Road

| fully support the review submitted by the licensing Authority to revoke Newmart’s
License to sell alcohol or any tobacco products. Sadly my daughter was a victim of
Newsmart in underage selling of Alcohol and vapes and ended up in a critical condition
in hospital.

On Sunday 27th October at approximately 3pm my daughter (| ) and four
of her friends ||| ) ent into Newsmart and bought a bottle of vodka and
two vapes. At no point were they asked for any ID or questioned in any way. 30 minutes
later they went back in and bought a further bottle of Vodka. They were clearly
underage and look like 13 and 14yr olds.

They then proceeded to drink the Vodka and smoke the Vapes which resulted in four
ambulances being called and three children in particular, (including my daughter who
is [l passed out. When the ambulance came my daughter was already in a
partial shut down and her blood pressure was dangerously low, one of the other girls
was Tachycardia and passed out. We were blue lighted to the hospital, on our way we
had to pull over as my daughter's blood pressure dropped again and they had to pullit
back up before carrying onto the hospital.

On arrive at Aand E, Chelsea and Westminster, they were unable to get a linein her as
she was so dehydrated and in a partial shutdown. She required a heat blanket, fluids
and it took her 8 hours to come around.

As a result of this and as a mother of three | can honestly say it was one of my darkest
days in parenting and the experience has deeply shaken me. My daughter as aresultis
traumatised by her experience and the horror she inadvertently put us as her family
through. | don’t hear a siren or look at an ambulance and not remember that night.

The Newsmart should not be able to continue to sell alcohol or tobacco products

whilst not adhering to basic safeguarding of our children and teenagers. They have a
reputation amongst the local schools for being easy to buy such items underage. The

Page 70



girls in question have witnessed in the past other children of a similar age procure with
no question vapes and vodka.

| hope this supports the review of the above licence.

Please can you ensure my name and any personal information is redacted from this

email so my daughter and | remain anonymous. We live locally and need to ensure my
child’s safety.

Many thanks

Sent: 19 January 2025 09:39
To: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@lbhf.gov.uk>

Cc: Masini Bill: H&F <Bill.Masini@lbhf.gov.uk>; Love Doug: H&F <Doug.Love@lbhf.gov.uk>
Subject: Name and address

For my representation my name and address is:

Please make sure this is redacted when sent to the newsmart owners.

Many thanks

Page 71



From: I

Sent: 19 January 2025 15:28

To: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@Ibhf.gov.uk>

Cc: Masini Bill: H&F <Bill.Masini@lbhf.gov.uk>; Love Doug: H&F <Doug.Love@I|bhf.gov.uk>
Subject: Newsmart- application to review licence

Dear Sirs,

RE: Incident Sunday 27th October 2024- Alcohol being sold to children - Askew Road

| fully support the review submitted by the licensing Authority to revoke Newmart’s
License to sell alcohol or any tobacco products. Sadly my daughter was a victim of
Newsmart in underage selling of Alcohol and vapes and ended up in Chelsea &
Westminster hospital on 27th October with 2 of her friends.

On Sunday 27th October at around 3-3:30pm 5 young girls aged 13 and 14 (including
my daughter) went into Newsmart and bought a bottle of vodka and two vapes. At no
point were they asked for any ID or questioned in any way. 30 minutes later they went
backin and bought a further bottle of Vodka. They counted out their change in front of
the shop attendant and paid for the 2nd bottle with coins. They were clearly underage
and look like 13 and 14yr olds.

The 5 girls drank the Vodka and smoked the Vapes which resulted in four ambulances
being called and three children in particular, being blue-lighted to hospital as they had
passed out. When the paramedics came into the house one girl was already in a partial
shut down and her blood pressure was dangerously low, one of the other girls was
Tachycardia and passed out. 3 girls were taken to Chelsea and Westminster where
they were cared for for 8 hours until 2 of the girls came round. It was a horrific
experience.

The Newsmart should not be able to continue to sell alcohol or tobacco products; they
have a local reputation amongst the secondary schools that they will sell both alcohol
and vapes without asking for any form of identification. They are clearly not adhering
to basic safeguarding of our children and teenagers. My daughter was coming home
from school just before Christmas and after the event on October 27th and some girls
in her schoolyear went into Newsmart and bought several vapes - they are clearly still
behaving and selling products to children such as vapes and vodka.

| hope this supports the review of the above licence.

Page 72



Please can you ensure my hame and any personal information is redacted from this

email so my daughter and | remain anonymous.

Many thanks

From: I

Sent: 20 January 2025 11:29
To: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@Ibhf.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: Newsmart- application to review licence

Dear Lorna

My name and address are below

kind regards

Page 73



11.13

11.14

11.15

» aground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in relation to
the same premises licence or certificate which has already been determined; or

» representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises licence or
certificate was granted; or

* representations which would have been made when the application for the premises
licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of the prior issue of
a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds, a reasonable interval
has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant.

Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts to
review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence
following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an earlier
occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be regarded as
a reasonable interval in these circumstances. However, it is recommended that more
than one review originating from a person other than a responsible authority in relation
to a particular premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on similar
grounds save in compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure order or
illegal working compliance order.

The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not apply to
responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a review of a
licence or certificate within a 12 month period.

When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a responsible
authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure procedures described in
Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must arrange a hearing. The
arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set out in regulations. These
regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website
(www.leqislation.gov.uk). It is particularly important that the premises licence holder is
made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises, any evidence
supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal representative
has therefore been able to prepare a response.

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review

11.16

11.17

11.18

The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives.

The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any further
steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to
prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to
recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing
authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring
that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be
issued in writing to the licence holder.

However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement — either orally or in writing
— that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing
authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account

96 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of trlgé_écgnfmg Act 2003



11.19

11.20

11.21

11.22

11.23

when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing authorities may
take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been
required to pay for employing an illegal worker.

Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is
appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:

» modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions
or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the
hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times;

+ exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the
incidental live and recorded music exemption)*©;

* remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that
the problems are the result of poor management;

» suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
* revoke the licence.

In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these
causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response
to address the causes of concern that instigated the review.

For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal and
replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management
decisions made by that individual.

Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be
an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review
hearings are generated, it should be rare merely to remove a succession of designated
premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of deeper problems that impact
upon the licensing objectives.

Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions of
licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up
to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be
expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives
or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a
weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise
to the review to happen again. However, it will always be important that any detrimental
financial impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and
proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly,
the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough

10 See chapter 16 in relation to the licensing of live and recorded music.

Revised Gufgig@(‘ee-}%sued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 97



action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed
insufficient, to revoke the licence.

98 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of trlgé.écgnf@g Act 2003



Reviews arising in connection with crime

11.24

11.25

11.26

11.27

A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected
with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at
the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen
goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing authorities
do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter
for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a review is not
therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the
promotion of the crime prevention objective.

Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not
part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations
giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of
any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal
courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to
determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on
the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review
follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go
beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed
evidence before them.

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should
be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime
prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or
associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of
the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with
the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is
still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing
authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives
and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not
those of the individual licence holder.

There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises
which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed
premises:

+ for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971
and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;
+ for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;

 for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which
does considerable damage to the industries affected;

« for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the
health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of
young people;

« for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
* by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;
+ as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;

Revised Gufgig@(‘ee-}sfued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 1 99



+ for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;

» for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK;

+ for unlawful gambling; and
 for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.28 Itis envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities,
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective
is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected
that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously
considered.

Review of a premises licence following closure order or illegal
working compliance order

11.29 Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation, for the
review of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the Anti-social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or an illegal working compliance order under
section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016. The relevant time periods run
concurrently and are as follows:

» when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has made a
closure order it has 28 days to determine the licence review — the determination must
be made before the expiry of the 28th day after the day on which the notice is
received,;

+ the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after
the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received;

* notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first
hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of the notice
and the start of the hearing).

Review of a premises licence following persistent sales of alcohol
to children

11.29 The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate responsibly
and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the age of 18 at
the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25 scheme).
Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a
proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol within very
quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier has not followed policy and
conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However, where persistent sales
of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent that those managing
the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not exercised appropriate due
diligence, responsible authorities should consider taking steps to ensure that a review of
the licence is the norm in these circumstances. This is particularly the case where there
has been a prosecution for the offence under section 147A or a closure notice has been
given under section 169A of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the licensing
authority should consider revoking the licence if it considers this appropriate.

100 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of ngég%ing Act 2003



Contents

1.

11

1.2

3.1

4.1

4.2

APPENDICES

THE APPLICATION

Application Requested

BACKGROUND
CONSULTATION
Relevant Representations
OTHER INFORMATION

Enforcement History

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

DETERMINATION

Copy of Application Form and Plan

Map showing location of premises and neighbouring premises

Applicants Operating Schedule

Temporary Event Notices (“TENs”)

Copy of Objection from Licensing Authority

Copy of Objections from Local Residents

Page 79

Agenda Item 4

Page

80
80
80
80
80-81
81
81
81
81
81-88

89

90-109
110-131
132
133-136



1. THE APPLICATION

On the 24" December 2024, the Licensing Authority received a valid application for a new
premises licence in respect of the premises known as MG Food & Wine, 143 Askew Road,
London, W12 9AU submitted by Manpreet Singh Kapoor of Personal Licence Courses UK
on behalf of, Mandeep Singh Bhatia (“the applicant”).

1.1 Application Requested

The applicant has applied for a new premises licence for the sale of alcohol off the premises
only as outlined below:

Sale by Retail of Alcohol - Off the Premises
Mondays to Sundays 08:00 to 23:00

Proposed Opening Hours:
Mondays to Sundays 08:00 to 23:00

A copy of the application form and plan can be seen on pages 90-109 of this report.

1.2 Applicants Operating Schedule

The applicant has proposed a number of steps to promote the four licensing objectives if the
application is granted. A copy of the proposed conditions can be seen on pages 99-101 of
this report.

2. BACKGROUND

The premises currently benefit from a premises licence which is held by Mr Subir Singh
Bhatia, under the reference 2023/01949/LAPR. This premises licence is currently under
review which is due to be heard before the Licensing Sub-Committee on the 17 February
2025. A link to the review papers can be found at the following link: Agenda for Licensing
Sub-Committee _on_Monday, 17th February, 2025, 6.30 pm | London Borough of
Hammersmith & Fulham

The main access to the premise’s is located on Askew Road. The premises intend to operate
as an off-licence convenience store. There is a mixture of both residential and commercial
premises within the area. A map showing the location of the premises and neighbouring
licensed premises can be seen on page 110-131 of this report.

There are several options for transport away from the area including buses and taxis which
run from in and around Askew Road area. Stamford Brook tube station is a 15-minute walk
away, Ravenscourt Park tube station is a 17-minute walk away and Goldhawk Road tube
Station is a 19-minute walk away.

3. CONSULTATION

A public notice was displayed at the premises for 28 days. The application was advertised
in a local circular and all statutory consultees were notified as required by the Regulations.

Page 80


https://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=179&MId=7826
https://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=179&MId=7826
https://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=179&MId=7826

The Council has served written notice of hearing upon the applicant and all those parties
that have made representations in respect of the application.

3.1. Relevant Representations

The licensing section received one representation objecting to the licence application from
Mr Adrian Overton on behalf of the Licensing Authority. A copy of the representation can
be seen on page 132 of this report.

The licensing section received two representations objecting to the licence application from
local residents. A copy of the representation can be seen on pages 133-136 of this report.

4. OTHER INFORMATION
4.1  Enforcement History

On the 6™ November 2024, Trading Standards and Licensing Enforcement officers made a
joint visit to the premises with a letter requesting CCTV footage to be produced. A full
licensing inspection was carried out and breaches of conditions 9, 10, 12, 13, 14, 18 and 19
attached to the premises were identified. A verbal warning was given, and the inspection
sheet was left at the premises as a warning letter.

On the 11" November 2024, Licensing Enforcement officer visited the premises
accompanied by a Law Enforcement Officer (“LET”). Licensing Enforcement identified
breaches of conditions 1, 4, 5, 7, 9, 13, 14, 15, 16 and 18 attached to the premises licence.
A verbal waning was given, and the inspection sheet was left at the premises as a warning
letter.

On the 9" December 2024, a PACE interview under caution was carried out by Licensing
and Trading Standard officers with the current premises licence holder and his representative
in attendance. The PACE interview was undertaken in relation to an incident which occurred
at the premises surrounding sales of alcohol to persons under 18 years old. Following the
PACE interview, the premises licence holder has been informed he will be reported for
possible prosecution.

4.2 Temporary Event Notices (“TENs”)

There have been no TENs which have been submitted in respect of this premises in the past
twelve months.

5. POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

5.1 Section 2 pages 7 and 8 of the Statement of Licensing Policy (“SLP”) states the
Licensing Authority is keen to support the licensed sector and leisure offer within the
borough, with a particular focus on business resilience and growing a robust and thriving
cultural and leisure sector.

To achieve this the Licensing Authority has identified three key themes of the Licensing
Policy and the Licensing Authority’s approach to implementing it. These are:

e A sustainable, well-run licensed sector;
e Hammersmith & Fulham as a good place to live, work and enjoy leisure; and,

Page 81



e A safe licensing environment and night-time economy.

5.2 Section 5 pages 12 and 13 of the SLP states that in order to ensure the promotion
of the four Licensing Objectives the Licensing Authority will require applicants to detail
in their operating schedule:

e the steps proposed to promote the licensing objective of the prevention of crime
and disorder on, and in the vicinity of, the premises, having regard to their location,
character, condition, the nature and extent of the proposed use and the persons
likely to use the premises;

e the steps proposed to ensure the physical safety of people using the relevant
premises or place;

e how they intend to prevent nuisance arising, prevent disturbance and protect
amenity so far as is appropriate to ensure that the Licensing Objectives are met.
Where there is a relevant representation regarding extended hours, the Licensing
Authority will not permit an extension unless it is satisfied that the Licensing
Objectives would be met;

e the measures and management controls in place to protect children from harm.
Where appropriate a written childcare policy should be available and be incorporated
in the induction of staff.

5.3 Section 7 pages 13 to 15 of the SLP states that operating schedules for premises
licences are the key to ensuring compliance with the four Licensing Objectives. The
measures proposed in the operating schedule will normally be converted into conditions
to be attached to the premises licence and should therefore fulfil the following criteria:

(i) Be precise and enforceable

(i) Be unambiguous

(ii)Not duplicate other statutory provisions
(iv)Be clear in what they intend to achieve, and
(v) Be appropriate, proportionate and justifiable

Operators of licensed premises will have to comply with planning, environmental health,
trading standards, fire safety, licensing and building control legislation when opening or
adapting licensed premises. The Licensing Authority will seek to avoid confusion and
duplication by not imposing licence conditions relating to matters that are required or
controllable under other legislation, except where they can be exceptionally justified to
promote the Licensing Objectives.

For sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises — applicants in respect of off licences
and other premises selling alcohol for consumption off the premises may need to consider
whether:

* there are shutters to prevent alcohol from being selected in non-licensed periods.

* there are appropriate numbers of staff on duty to deal with possible ‘intimidation’ to sell
alcohol.

* there are restrictions required on the sale of low price, high strength alcohol and drink
promotions.

* an incident log book is available to record incidents.

* there are measures in place necessary to prevent underage sales.

* there are measures in place necessary to prevent alcohol from being sold outside permitted
hours where the operating hours of the premises exceed those for the sale of alcohol.

Page 82



 there are procedures in place to prevent sales of alcohol to intoxicated persons (with
particular attention to street drinkers) or individuals leaving premises in the vicinity such as
a late night bar; where there is evidence to suggest this is a problem the Licensing Authority
may require a temporary cessation of alcohol sales during high risk times.

5.4 Policy 1 page 18 confirms that The Secretary of State’s Guidance states that
applicants are expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to demonstrate, the
steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives; and that they understand the
layout of the local area and physical environment including:

a) crime and disorder hotspots;

b) proximity to residential premises;

c) proximity to areas where children may congregate;

d) any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and

e) participation in any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or
voluntary schemes, such as ‘Ask for Angela’, local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors
and other schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks.

Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they will
manage any potential risks.

The Guidance goes on to state that ‘Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities
with sufficient information in this section to determine the extent to which their proposed
steps are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must
not be based on providing a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing objectives
and applicants are expected to make it clear why the steps they are proposing are
appropriate for the premises.’

The Licensing Authority notes the contents of these paragraphs from the Secretary of State’s
Guidance and, in particular, the use of the word ‘expected’. Licence applications that do not
in any way address the contents of these paragraphs in their operating schedules may be
returned to the applicant as ‘incomplete’.

5.5 Policy 3 page 21 and 22 of the SLP states that where there is a relevant representation,
the Licensing Authority will consider each particular case on its merits having regard in
particular to the following matters:

a) Whether the licensed activities are likely to have an adverse impact especially on local
residents and, if there is potential to have an adverse impact, what, if any, appropriate
measures will be put in place to prevent it;

b) Whether there will be a substantial increase in the cumulative adverse impact from these
or similar activities, on an adjacent residential area;

c) Whether there is a suitable level of public transport accessibility to and from the premises
at the appropriate times;

d) Whether the activity will be likely to lead to a harmful and unmanageable increase in car
parking demand in surrounding residential streets suffering high levels of parking stress or
on roads forming part of the Strategic London Road Network or the London Bus Priority
Network leading to a negative impact on the Licensing Objectives relating to the prevention
of crime, disorder, anti-social behaviour (ASB), nuisance and vehicle emissions;

e) Whether there have been any representations made by Responsible Authorities, or other
relevant agency or representative.

Page 83



The Licensing Authority will closely scrutinise extended hours applications to ensure that the
Licensing Objectives are met. In determining an application the licensing committee might
decide that the circumstances are such that a restriction on hours is the only appropriate
means to achieve the Licensing Objectives. If an ‘hours’ restriction is imposed, the Licensing
Authority will normally require that customers should be allowed a minimum of thirty minutes
to consume alcohol.

To act as a guide for new or existing operators we have set out the suggested closing times
for licensed premises below:

Type of | Town centres Mixed use areas Residential
premises areas
Off-licences and | 23:00 daily 23:00 daily 22:00 daily
alcohol sales in

supermarkets

5.6 Policy 4 pages 22 and 23 of the SLP states that in determining an application where
there has been a relevant representation the Licensing Authority will, where appropriate,
take into account the cumulative effect of the number, type and density of licensed premises
already existing in the area. Consideration will be given to the proximity to any drug and
alcohol treatment site, A&E department or homeless hostel in a local area type remit ie
applicants need to make the case for how they would not increase further problems for
residents/clients nearby.

In coming to any decision regarding cumulative impact the Licensing Authority will consider
other mechanisms outside of the licensing regime which may also be available to address
this issue, these include but are not limited to:

e Police and other enforcement of the normal law concerning disorder and anti-social
behaviour

e Prosecution or other enforcement of any personal licence holder or member of staff at
such premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk

* Prosecution or other enforcement of any personal licence holder or member of staff at such
premises who is selling to underage persons or selling illegal alcohol or tobacco

e Police powers to close down instantly any licensed premises or temporary events on
grounds of disorder, the likelihood of disorder or excessive noise emanating from the
premises, for up to 24 hours. e The power of the police, other responsible authorities, a local
resident, business or Councillor to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question.

¢ Police and Local Authority power to issue a Closure Notice for up to 48 hours where serious
antisocial behaviour is taking place at licensed premises under the Anti-social Behaviour,
Crime and Policing Act 2014.

¢ To ensure that residents are protected from the negative impact of late-night local licensing
activities the Licensing Authority may decide to adopt an Area Specific Cumulative Impact
Policy in relation to a specific area; where the number, type and density of premises
providing licensable activities is having a serious negative impact on the local community
and local amenities.

5.7 Policy 11 pages 29 and 30 of the SLP states that Licensing law is not the primary

mechanism for the general control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour caused by people
once they are away from the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond the direct control of

Page 84



the licensee. However, licensing is a key aspect of such control and licensing law is part of
a holistic approach to the management of the night-time economy.

As a matter of policy the council expects every holder of a licence, certificate or permission,
to accept and be responsible for minimising the impact of their activities and anti-social
behaviour by their patrons within the vicinity of their premises by taking appropriate
measures and action consistent with that responsibility.

Licensees and certificate holders should take reasonable steps to prevent the occurrence
of crime and disorder and public nuisance immediately outside their premises, for example
on the pavement, in a beer garden or in a smoking area, to the extent that these matters are
within their control.

Population densities in this borough are high, with many residential premises located above
or in close proximity to licensed premises. This means that the public nuisance and crime
and disorder objectives will be of paramount concern when evaluating Operating Schedules.
Licensing Committees will place high regard on the control measures put in place by the
applicant to ensure that our residents are protected from the potential detrimental effects of
any licensed premises.

5.8 Policy 12 pages 30 and 31 of the SLP states that we are committed to the Regulators
Code and supporting businesses.

i) We will work with businesses in our borough and provide the advice you need to help you
comply with the law. This may be through meeting with you at your premises or at our offices,
providing written advice in an email or letter or verbally over the telephone.

i) We will usually confirm any technical/ legal advice in writing. For applicants and agents,
we also offer a pre-application advice service. Further details about this service can be found
on our website.

i) We will attend pub watch meetings and work with local businesses, including the
Hammersmith Business Improvement District (BID) and Fulham BID, to help facilitate the
sharing of information and advice amongst licensees in our borough.

iv) We are continuously working to improve our online application process for a range of
licence permissions. If you want to know what services are available or you want to make
an application online, please check our website for further details.

v) We want to ensure that businesses comply with the law. Where this has not been possible
through advice and education, we will carry out enforcement action in accordance with our
enforcement policy and as part of our commitment to the Regulators Code.

vi) We want local businesses in our borough to thrive and survive. We recognise that the
law can be complex at times and that despite trying to resolve issues through discussion in
the first instance, enforcement will be necessary on some occasions. We also recognise
that attitudes, circumstances and personnel often change over time.

Where enforcement action has been taken against a business in the past, relevant
Responsible Authorities will be mindful of this when considering any new applications.
However, all new applications e.g. variations to hours or licensable activities will be decided
on their merits and the information provided to demonstrate promotion of the four licensing

Page 85



objectives. Where a premises licence or club premises certificate has previously been
reviewed or the business has been prosecuted for licensing offences, licensees are advised
to discuss any new/proposed changes with the Licensing Authority and/or the relevant
Responsible Authority e.g. The Police, to resolve any ongoing concerns and/or issues.

5.9 Policy 16 of the SLP pages 33 and 34 of the SLP in relation to the safety of women
and girls in licensed settings states that the Licensing Authority expects licence applications
to specifically include measures to ensure the safety of women and girls in licensed
premises. The Licensing Authority will use its powers to regulate the night-time economy,
both with specific regard to spiking incidents and more generally in relation to violence
against women and girls. This may include:

a) Using the Licensing Authority’s powers to impose conditions or revoke premises licenses,
where venues do not take sufficient measures to protect and provide support to customers
in spiking incidents;

b) Considering the prevalence, prevention and reporting of sexual harassment and
misconduct and gender-based violence in licensed premises.

¢) Requiring the presence of suitably trained and accredited door staff,

d) Require presence of CCTV, or to introduce entry searches for example.

Licence applicants and existing licence holders are encouraged to include in their operating
schedules clear polices relating to potential abuse or violence against women and girls.

This would include but is not limited to the ‘Ask for Angela’ programme, Welfare and
Vulnerability Engagement’ training package (WAVE) for staff to identify and assist women
and girls being at risk or being subjected to violence, and the implementation of clear policies
in the premises on preventing and addressing violence against women and girls. The
Licensing Authority would also encourage off licensed premises to take part in the Ask for
Angela scheme in an effort to increase the visible promotion of the scheme in all licensed
premises across the borough.

Implementing these measures, particularly for on-licence premises, providing training for
staff to increase awareness and provide skills and tools for identifying and assisting when it
is at risk of happening or is happening, and having clear policies against violence against
women and girls provide a solid basis for addressing the issue when it occurs in licensed
premises. Furthermore, having policies on staff reporting incidents to Police and Council
officers will help to ensure that these incidents are addressed.

As part of the Government’s and the Council’s Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy,
venues may also wish to consider boosting their security measures e.g. the recruitment and
training of additional door security staff, particularly female staff.

The Council are proud supporters of the Women’s Night Safety Charter, and we would like
to encourage all our licensed premises to consider how you and your business can
contribute to making your workplace and H&F a borough where all women feel confident
and welcome whenever and wherever they happen to be. The Women’s Night Safety
Charter is a voluntary pledge to show you take women’s safety seriously. By signing the
Charter, you show your acknowledgement of the issue and that you’re ready to get proactive
in improving women’s safety.

Page 86



5.10 Annex 1 pages 35 and 36 of the SLP in relation to the prevention of crime and
disorder states licence applicants will be expected to demonstrate the following in their
operating schedules:

a) Measures to control excessive consumption and intoxication.

b) Consideration of any additional measures or restrictions that may be placed on alcohol
sales to prevent binge drinking and promote ‘sensible drinking’.

c) Operators of off-licences in areas problems relating to street drinking and underage
drinking are prevalent, measures should be outlined to strictly monitor the way alcohol is
sold, specifically where the premises are located close to schools and hostels and similar
premises that provide shelter or services to alcohol dependent persons.

d) It is important to ensure that staff working at off licences are suitably trained and receive
appropriate refresher training in their responsibilities under the Act and can discharge their
duties in full compliance with the licence conditions and requirements of the Act. This
includes the ability to competently check a customer’s age with acceptable forms of
identification where necessary. The Licensing Authority will particularly consider the
following matters where they are material to the individual application:

i. The likelihood of any violence, public order or policing problem if the licence is granted;

ii. The measures taken to control admission to the premises, and to take reasonable steps
to prevent the occurrence of crime and disorder and public nuisance immediately outside
the premises, where and to the extent that these matters are within their control.

iii. Past conduct and prior history of complaints against the premises.

iv. Whether a dispersal policy has been prepared to minimise the potential for disorder as
customers leave the premises; and

v. Any relevant representations.

g) Conditions will, so far as possible, reflect local crime prevention strategies, and the
Licensing Authority will also have regard to the views of the local Crime and Disorder
Reduction Partnership.

The following provides a non-exhaustive list of risks associated with the crime and disorder
objective that applicants may want to consider when preparing their Operating Schedule:

j) CCTV - using CCTV inside and/or outside the premises together with appropriate
procedures and having staff properly trained to use CCTV equipment.

l) dealing with and reporting crime and disorder - training for staff and door security aimed
at reducing crime and disorder in the premises and its vicinity and dealing with and reporting
incidents if they occur.

0) excessive drinking - training for staff to recognise when customers are becoming drunk
and adopting appropriate ‘cut off procedures for drunken customers,so as to reduce the
likelihood of fights or aggressive behaviour.

5.11 Annex 1 page 37 and 38 of the SLP in relation to public safety states the Licensing
Authority will require the applicant to demonstrate the steps proposed to ensure the physical
safety of people using the relevant premises or place. This does not cover the separate need
for applicants to provide relevant public safety requirements dealt with by Environmental
Health.

The following provides a non-exhaustive list of risks associated with the public safety
objective that applicants may want to consider when preparing their Operating Schedule:

e) incident and occurrence book — keeping an incident book on the premises so staff can
record any instances of crime, disorder, refused sales, ejections and intimidating behaviour.

Page 87



5.12 Annex 1 pages 38 and 39 of the SLP in relation to the prevention of public nuisance
states that the Licensing Authority will require the applicant to demonstrate within the
operating plan how they intend to prevent nuisance arising, prevent disturbance and protect
amenity so far as is appropriate to ensure that the Licensing Objectives are met.

This is expected to include:

a) In considering an application, the Licensing Authority will consider the adequacy of
proposed measures to remove or effectively manage the potential for public nuisance and
anti-social behaviour and any Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs) in place.

b) Licensing Authority will particularly consider the following matters where they are material
to the individual application:

ii. The proximity of residential accommodation.

lii. The type of use proposed, including the likely numbers of customers, proposed hours of
operation and the frequency of activity.

xvii. The history of the applicant in controlling anti-social behaviour and preventing nuisance.
XiXx. Any other relevant activity likely to give rise to nuisance.

xx. Any representations made by the Police, or other relevant agency or representative.

5.13 Annex 1 pages 40 and 41 of the SLP in relation to the protection of children from
harm states the Licensing Authority will require operating plans to specify the measures and
management controls in place to protect children from harm. Where appropriate a written
childcare policy should be available and be incorporated in the induction of staff. This is
expected to include:

b) The Licensing Authority will particularly consider whether:

vi. There are licensable activities that are likely to appeal to minors/children under 16 taking
place during times when children under 16 may be expected to be attending compulsory
full-time education;

c) The sale of alcohol to a minor is a criminal offence and Trading Standards officers will
conduct appropriate covert test purchasing exercises and will take account of any
complaints and intelligence. The Act permits the use of children under the age of 18 to
undertake test purchases when they have been directed to do so by a duly authorised officer.
d) Where a sale of alcohol has been made on the same premises to a minor on two or more
different occasions within a period of three months the premises licence could be suspended
for a defined period.

g) The Licensing Authority will expect operating plans to specify the measures and
management controls in place to prevent alcohol being served to children, other than in
those limited circumstances permitted by the Act. The Council’s Trading Standards officers
have a role to play in the protection of children from harm, and proof of age schemes, and
are able to provide advice in relation to measures that can be taken to help prevent the sale
of alcohol to underage children. Potential licence holders should also be aware of the Proof
of Age London (PAL) Scheme hosted by Southwark Council.

i) Where premises are subject to age-restrictions, the procedures in place to conduct age
verification checks. The Council will expect premises only to accept current passports,
driving licences or documents bearing the national PASS logo, such as Citizencard. The
Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) is the UK's national guarantee scheme for proof-
of- age cards as endorsed by the Home Office. More information can be found on The Proof
of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) website.

Page 88



6. DETERMINATION

6.1 In determining this application, the Committee must have regard to the representations
and take such of the following steps as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:

(a) Grant the application in full
(b) Grant the application in part — modifying the proposed hours, activities or conditions.
(c) Reject the application

It is the Council’s duty under the Licensing Act 2003 (“The Act”) to determine applications
with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives; Prevention of Crime and Disorder,
Public Safety, Prevention of Public Nuisance and the Protection of Children from Harm.

In reaching a decision the Council shall consider the details of any relevant representations
received; the applicant’s Operating Schedule; the Council’s adopted Statement of Licensing
Policy and the guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the Act.

If the Committee is minded to grant the application conditions may be attached to the licence
to alleviate the concerns raised through the representations.

Page 89



Application amended on the 24/12/2024 with agent's consent

hsf\/

hammersmith & fulham

Hammersmith and Fulham
Application for a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact
licensing@lbhf.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 8753 1081

* required information

Section 1 of 21

System reference

Your reference

* E-mail
Main telephone number

Other telephone number

Is the applicant:

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

Not Currently In Use

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

(¢ Yes C No
Applicant Details
* First name Mandeep Singh
* Family name Bhatia

1N

X Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

(" Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

(¢ Applying as an individual

This is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.

You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.

Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Include country code.

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means the
applicant is applying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

Page 90

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009



Continued from previous page...

Address

* Building number or name

* Street

District

* City or town

County or administrative area
* Postcode

* Country

Agent Details

* First name

* Family name

* E-mail

Main telephone number

Other telephone number

I
.
____ I

United Kingdom

Manpreet Singh

Kapoor

info@personallicencecourses.com

020 8606 0558

[[] Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

(" Anagent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader

(¢ A private individual acting as an agent

Your Address

Include country code.

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.

Address official correspondence should be
sent to.

* Building number orname  |Personal Licence Courses UK
* Street 145 Station Road

District

* City or town West Drayton

County or administrative area

* Postcode UB7 7ND

* Country United Kingdom

Section 2 of 21

PREMISES DETAILS

Page 91

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?
(¢ Address ('  OS map reference (" Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name MG Food & Wine
Street 143 Askew Road
District

City or town London

County or administrative area

Postcode W12 9AU

Country United Kingdom

Further Details

Telephone number

Non-domestic rateable
value of premises (£) 15,250

Page 92

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Section 3 of 21

APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?

X Anindividual or individuals

A limited company / limited liability partnership
A partnership (other than limited liability)

An unincorporated association

Other (for example a statutory corporation)

A recognised club

A charity

The proprietor of an educational establishment

A health service body

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act

O Oo0O0o0o0o0oofdooao

2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England

[] The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales
Confirm The Following

| am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves
the use of the premises for licensable activities

X

[7] I'am making the application pursuant to a statutory function

I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

O

Section 4 of 21

INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT DETAILS

Applicant Name
Is the name the same as (or similar to) the details given in section one?

(¢ Yes " No
First name Mandeep Singh
Family name Bhatia

Is the applicant 18 years of age or older?

(¢ Yes C No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as required.
Select “No” to enter a completely new set of
details.

Page 93

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Current Residential Address

Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one?

(¢ Yes C No

Building number or name

Street

District

County or administrative area

n
|

City or town !
T

Postcode

Country United Kingdom

Applicant Contact Details

Are the contact details the same as (or similar to) those given in section one?

(¢ Yes " No

cma I

Telephone number _

Other telephone number

* Date of birth

* Nationality !

Right to work share code !

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

Documents that demonstrate entitlement to
work in the UK

Right to work share code if not submitting
scanned documents

| Add another applicant

Section 5 of 21

OPERATING SCHEDULE

When do you want the / /
premises licence to start?

dd mm yyyy

If you wish the licence to be
valid only for a limited period, / /
when do you want it to end dd

mm yyyy

Provide a general description of the premises

Page 94

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

Off Licence and Convenience Store

If 5,000 or more people are
expected to attend the
premises at any one time,
state the number expected to
attend

Section 6 of 21

PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing plays?
" Yes (¢ No

Section 7 of 21

PROVISION OF FILMS

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing films?
" Yes (¢ No

Section 8 of 21

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing indoor sporting events?

" Yes (¢ No

Section 9 of 21

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

C Yes (¢ No

Section 10 of 21

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing live music?

" Yes (¢ No

Section 11 of 21

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment Page 95

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Will you be providing recorded music?

" Yes (¢ No

Section 12 of 21

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing performances of dance?

" Yes (¢ No

Section 13 of 21

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance?

" Yes (¢ No

Section 14 of 21

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will you be providing late night refreshment?

" Yes (¢ No

Section 15 of 21

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?

(& Yes " No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start |08:00 End [23:00 (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start End to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start |08:00 End |23:00
Start End
WEDNESDAY
Start |08:00 End [23:00
Start End
THURSDAY
Start |08:00 End |23:00
Start End
Page 96

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

FRIDAY
Start |08:00 End |23:00
Start End
SATURDAY
Start |08:00 End |23:00
Start End
SUNDAY
Start |08:00 End |23:00
Start End
Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption: I the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol
(' Onthe premises (¢ Offthe premises ( Both is for consumption away from the premises

select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

NONE

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

NONE

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the
licence as premises supervisor

Name
First name Mandeep Singh
Family name Bhatia

Date of birth !J / |_!_| / I!_I
dd mm yyyy

Page 97

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Enter the contact's address

Building number or name

Street

District

.
]

City or town -
I

County or administrative area

Postcode

Country United Kingdom

Personal Licence number
(if known)

To be applied

Issuing licensing authority
(if known)

Ealing Council

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority?

(" Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

(¢ Asan attachment to this application

Reference number for consent If the consent form is already submitted, ask

form (if known) the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your
reference’.

Section 16 of 21

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

NONE

Section 17 of 21
HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start [08:00 End |23:00 (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start P arE12-dQ. . to be used for the activity.

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009



Continued from previous page...

TUESDAY

Start |08:00 End |23:00

Start End
WEDNESDAY

Start |08:00 End [23:00

Start End
THURSDAY

Start |08:00 End |23:00

Start End
FRIDAY

Start |08:00 End |23:00

Start End
SATURDAY

Start |08:00 End [23:00

Start End
SUNDAY

Start |08:00 End |23:00

Start End

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

NONE

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

NONE

Section 18 of 21

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) Page 99

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

1. Strict implementation of challenge 25 policy
2. CCTV to be installed and 31 days recoding system
3. All staff to be trained in responsible alcohol retailing

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system which records 24 hours a day. All CCTV recordings
shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days and all recordings will be stamped with the correct date and time. Viewing
of recordings shall be made available, subject to Data Protection legislation, immediately upon the request of Police or an
authorised council officer.

2. That licensing activities are only carried out at the premises at times when the CCTV system is fully operational

3. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall always be on the
premises when the premises are open. This staff member must be able to provide a police or authorised council officer
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the minimum of delay when requested.

4. An incident logbook will be maintained by the premises that details incidents of note that occur in the premises. This
shall include refused sales, disorder, and ejections as a minimum. The logbook shall always be kept on the premises, for a
minimum of 1 year from each entry, and be available for inspection, at all times the premises is open. Management shall

regularly check the book to ensure all staff are using it.

5. All staff responsible for selling alcohol shall receive regular training in the Licensing Act 2003.Written records of this
training shall be retained and made available for inspection to Police or Council Officers on request.

6. All alcohol shall be purchased from AWRS registered cash & carry and wholesalers.
8. All goods, including those subject to duty payments i.e., alcohol and tobacco products will be brought from cash and
carries only an invoices and they will be available upon request. All alcohol will be purchased from AWRS registered cash &

carry or wholesalers.

9. All staff employed at the premises will have UK right to work status checked, once passed that stage they shall be offered
employment.

10. Any alcohol sold for consumption off the premises shall be sold in a sealed container.
11. Strong beer, lager, cider and stout above 5.5% ABV shall not be displayed or sold.

12. Previous management who owned this business or had any involvement Mr Subir Singh Bhatia and his son shall not be
allowed to enter the property, they shall be banned from the premises.

¢) Public safety

1. Fire Exit Signs Displayed
2. CCTV 31 Days recording facility

Page 100

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

d) The prevention of public nuisance

1. Notice displayed asking customers to leave quietly from premises also customers will be told in person to leave quietly
and not to disturb the local neighbourhood

2. Strict policy in place to tell all staff not to serve alcohol to drunks at all

3. Appropriate signage will be displayed, in prominent position informing customers they are being recorded on CCTV

e) The protection of children from harm

1. A challenge 25 policy will be in force, where any person looking under the age of 25 shall be asked to prove their age
when attempting to purchase alcohol and signs to this effect will be displayed at the premises. Challenge 25 posters
displayed where alcohol is sold.

2. The only acceptable ID will be those with photographic identification documents; including passport, photo-card, driving
license or proof of age card bearing the PASS hologram.

3. An refusal book shall be kept at the premises and updated as and when required, and made available for inspection on
request to an Licensing Officer, Police or other responsible authority.

4. A challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall operate at the premises. Signage shall be displayed advising customers that the
scheme is in place. All staff authorised to sell alcohol will be trained in the Challenge 25 scheme and this training will be
documented to include the date the training was given, the name of the person who gave the training, the person who
received the training and signatures by both trainer and trainee

Section 19 of 21

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

Page 101

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:

Alicence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:

. does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
. is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by
providing their 'share code' to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work
checking service (see below).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

. An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

. An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

. A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

. A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

. A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the

holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

. A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.
. A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement

indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

. A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency
or a previous employer.

. A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

. A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

Page 102

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

. A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

. A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

. A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

. A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder

with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

. A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)
of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

. Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

. Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

. evidence of the applicant’s own identity — such as a passport,
. evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member — e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
. evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
(1) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:-

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;

(i) any page containing the holder’s photograph;

(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;

(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and

(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work.

Page 103

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.

Home Office online right to work checking service

As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.

To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-right-
to-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority
to carry out the check.

In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration status that can
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service
should submit copy documents as set out above.

Section 20 of 21

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 104

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports — defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Page 105

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

o Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

o Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:

o) any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

o) any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

Section 21 of 21

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non domestic rateable value of the premises.

To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm

Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00

Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00

Band C-£33001 to £8700 £315.00

Band D - £87001 to £12500 £450.00*

Band E - £125001 and over £635.00*

*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee

Band D - £87001 to £12500 £900.00

Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00

There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls,
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The
costs associated with these licences will be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use of
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee will be required.

Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college.

If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00

Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00

Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00

Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00

Capacity 30000-39000 £16,000.00

Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00

Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00

Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00

Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00

Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00

Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00

* Fee amount (£) 190.00

DECLARATION

Page 106

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

» /we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name |Manpreet S Kapoor
* Capacity Agent
* Date 23 | [|12] ]| 2024
dd mm yyyy
| Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2. Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/hammersmith-and-fulham/apply-1 to upload this
file and continue with your application.

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

ITIS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

ITIS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECTTO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE
IS DISQUALIFIED

Page 107

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number

Fee paid

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment status

Payment authorisation code

Payment authorisation date

Date and time submitted

Approval deadline

Error message

Is Digitally signed N

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 Next>

Page 108

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




NLI)

AARD g m

WAWSIOLML F ¢
YITY FLAIDY N3osnan R

B
Rl
PMAWHOD
rD Pt W KIYNNYLHDIINGD
% Yagy Z2ALNOQD)
_ O _
, Q SINIV * S1131dS SAdHUN
~ : © o)

Mvh Tim ~oaN o
UV MEmISY k)
3N B gae’d Y

|
PLemMiges
ENTRANCE

Page 109



eGIS Web Map
o Ol | ] B ] O N
. * =y =i — a - - ® e i . . : :
. " . [ * .
T . . - -. -
~ . = . -
- @ L] L] o 5 L] r
- F . * L] = . ¥ s ® . ‘ . . ® M
A0 " * ® ® ~ : . .
- P - . - = L
® . N i r ’ L - )
= q - L] - - - ;
. . 5 1 : " . '1 - o
u . l. . i ¥~ HEEy -
o i . g : . . ' : : |
P ) ’ e . . : : 5
D = & N =
«@ U . " . [
1) L% - . . g :
H B oE i i M [}
Hle § . 3 . g
P . : . . = .
. B . N - ". " . -
 u o - s ‘.
-r. d . 5 * ..
) . . u " N
’ s ¥ n . . = L] .
L) . ® - - .
1:1,654
0 75 150 300 ft
| L L L 1 L L ! |
I T T T T T T T T
0 20 40 80 m

21/01/2025, 17:52:45
- Licensing Points

Property Gazetteer
Within Borough

ArcGIS Web AppBuilder

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 OS Licence No. AC0000808631.



Trading Monday to
Ref.no. name ADDRESS ACTIVITY Sunday Monday Tuesday |[Wednesday| Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday
Dimco 30 Wood
2024/01279 Buildings LaneLondon Performance 08:00:00 -
/LAPR (28-30) W12 7DT  of Dance 01:00:00
Exhibition of a ' 08:00:00 -
Film 01:00:00
Indoor 08:00:00 -
Sporting Event 01:00:00
Performance 08:00:00 -
of Live Music 01:00:00
Playing of
Recorded 08:00:00 -
Music 01:00:00
Entertainment
o Similar to
g Music or 08:00:00 -
2 Dance 01:00:00
I': Performance 08:00:00 -
of a Play 01:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 01:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |10:00:00 -
Premises 01:00:00
Chipotle Westfield
Mexican London
Grill - Unit |Shopping Sale of Alcohol
2023/01123/SU2067 - CentreAriel |On and Off the 11:00:00 -
/LAPR Level 50 WayLondon Premises 23:00:00




21T abed

Puttshack

Units 0237,
2024/01175 1234, 1235
/LAPR And 1236

Relay
Square -
Westfield
London
2022/00062 (Open
JLAPR Space)

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Indoor
Sporting Event

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Performance
of Dance
Exhibition of a
Film
Performance
of Live Music

09:30:00 -
01:00:00

09:30:00 -
01:00:00

23:00:00 -
01:30:00

09:30:00 -
01:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00



€TT abed

2023/01326
/LAPR

2023/01979
/LAPR

Playing of
Recorded

Music
Entertainment

Similar to
Music or
Dance
Performance
of a Play

Sale of Alcohol

On and Off the
Premises
Westfield
London
TOCA Social Shopping
- Unit CentreAriel Performance
SU0079C  |WayLondon of Live Music
Playing of
Recorded
Music
Late Night
Refreshment
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises
Westfield
London
Shopping

CentreAriel |Performance
Vue Cinema WaylLondon of Dance

09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:30:00 -
01:30:00

09:30:00 -
01:30:00
23:00:00 -
01:30:00

09:30:00 -

01:00:00

08:00:00 -
03:30:00



¥TT obed

Westfield
Shopping
Centre -
Phase 2
2022/00063 (Open
JLAPR Spaces)

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Exhibition of a
Film
Performance
of Live Music
Playing of
Recorded

Music
Entertainment
Similar to
Music or
Dance
Performance
of a Play

Late Night
Refreshment
Sale of Alcohol
On the
Premises

Performance
of Dance
Exhibition of a
Film
Performance
of Live Music
Playing of
Recorded
Music

00:00:00 -
00:00:00
08:00:00 -
03:30:00

08:00:00 -
03:30:00

08:00:00 -
03:30:00
08:00:00 -
03:30:00
23:00:00 -
05:00:00

08:00:00 -
02:30:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00



GTT abed

Westfield

Shopping

Centre
2022/00061 (Open
/LAPR Spaces)

Westfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Entertainment
Similar to
Music or
Dance
Performance
of a Play

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Performance
of Dance
Exhibition of a
Film
Performance
of Live Music
Playing of
Recorded

Music
Entertainment

Similar to
Music or
Dance
Performance
of a Play

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00
09:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:00:00 -
23:00:00



Store
BWestfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
2022/01678 Marks And WayLondon Late Night 23:00:00 -
/LAPR Spencer W12 7GA  |Refreshment 00:00:00
Sale of Alcohol
Off the 07:00:00- 07:00:00- 07:00:00- '07:00:00- '07:00:00- 07:00:00- |10:00:00 -
Premises 22:00:00 22:00:00 22:00:00 22:00:00 22:00:00 22:00:00 18:00:00
Sale of Alcohol
On the 10:00:00- 10:00:00- 10:00:00- |10:00:00- |10:00:00- 10:00:00- 10:00:00 -
Premises 22:00:00 22:00:00 22:00:00 22:00:00 22:00:00 22:00:00 18:00:00
Store
EWestfield
London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2024/00663 WayLondon Recorded 08:00:00 -
/LAPR Waitrose W12 7GA  Music 23:00:00

U
Q
(@]
]
[ —
=
(o3}

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |08:00:00 -
Premises 23:00:00
Unit
1026Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2022/00441 WayLondon Recorded 23:00:00 -
/LAPR Salt Yard W12 7GA  Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00



LTT abed

2022/00441
/LAPR

2024/01087
/LAPR

2024/01432
/LAPR

Salt Yard

Busaba

Unit

1026Westfi

eld London

Shopping

CentreAriel |Sale of Alcohol

WayLondon On and Off the

W12 7GA  Premises

Unit

1026AWest

field

London

Shopping

CentreAriel

WayLondon Indoor

W12 7GA  Sporting Event
Playing of
Recorded
Music
Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Unit

1027Westfi

eld London

Shopping

CentreAriel

WayLondon Exhibition of a

W12 7GA  Film
Playing of
Recorded
Music

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:00:00 -
01:00:00

09:00:00 -
01:00:00



8TT abed

2020/00218 Copper
/LAPR Chimney

2024/00176
/LAPR

Unit
1028Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GB

Unit
1029Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GB

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

23:00:00 -
01:00:00

09:00:00 -
01:00:00

08:00:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

08:00:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00



6TT abed

2021/01607
/LAPR

2014/01612
/LAPR

2022/00558
/LAPR

Wagamama

Mandaloun

The Bull

Unit
1030Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
WayLondon Recorded
W12 7GB  Music
Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Unit

1031Westfi

eld London

Shopping

CentreAriel Playing of

WayLondon Recorded

W12 7GA Music
Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Unit

1033 Westfi

eld London

Shopping

CentreAriel Playing of

WayLondon Recorded

W12 7GA Music

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00



02T abed

2024/00226
/LAPR

Sticks 'N'

Sushi, Level

30 And 40,
2024/00669 Southern
/LAPR Terrace

Unit

1034 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GA

Unit
1035Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GA

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
01:30:00
23:00:00 -
01:30:00

09:30:00 -
01:00:00



2008/03511 M & S

/LAPR Kitchen
-
2 2022/00180
® JLAPR Flat Iron
=
N
H

2022/02063 Bill's
/LAPR

Kiosk

1021 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GB

Unit
1053AWest
field
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WaylLondon
W12 7GD

Unit
1071Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon

Restaurants W12 7GB

Late Night 23:00:00 -

Refreshment 00:00:00

Sale of Alcohol

On the 10:00:00 - 10:00:00 -
Premises 23:00:00 23:00:00
Performance 11:00:00 -

of Live Music 23:30:00

Playing of

Recorded 07:00:00- 07:00:00 -
Music 00:00:00 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -

Refreshment 00:00:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the 11:00:00 -

Premises 23:30:00
Playing of

Recorded 09:30:00 -
Music 00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

07:00:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

07:00:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

07:00:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

08:00:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
22:30:00

08:00:00 -
00:00:00



2z1 abed

Gourmet
2024/01474 Burger
/LAPR Kitchen

2020/00675 The Real
/LAPR Greek

Unit
1072Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GB

Unit

1073 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GB

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00



€21 abed

2022/02135
/LAPR

2023/01944
/LAPR

2023/01625
/LAPR

Wahaca

Rosa's Thai

Zizzi

Unit
1074Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
WayLondon Recorded
W12 7GB  Music
Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Unit

1075Westfi

eld London

Shopping

CentreAriel Playing of

WayLondon Recorded

W12 7GB Music
Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Unit

1076Westfi

eld London

Shopping

CentreAriel Playing of

WayLondon Recorded

W12 7GB Music

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00



72T obed

2021/00131
/LAPR

2015/01531 Patisserie

/LAPR

Concerto

Unit
1089AWest
field
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GB

Kiosk

2004 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GE

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
01:00:00
23:00:00 -
01:30:00

09:30:00 -
01:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00



GZT abed

2024/01138 Comptoir
/LAPR Libanais

Shawa
2021/00862 Westfield
/LAPR Unit K2014

2024/00897

/LAPR Pho

Kiosk

2013Westfi

eld London

Shopping

CentreAriel Playing of

WayLondon Recorded
W12 7GE Music
Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the

Premises
Kiosk

2014Westfi
eld London
Shopping

CentreAriel
WayLondon

W12 7GE
Kiosk

2015Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GE

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

10:00:00 -
23:00:00

10:00:00 -
19:00:00



9zT abed

Kiosk

2016Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2019/00502 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Catch Me |W127GE  Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Unit
2024CWestf
ield London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2015/00901 Caffe WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Concerto W12 7GF Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Kiosk
2024 Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2022/00269 Tapas WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -

/LAPR Revolution ‘W12 7GF Music 00:00:00



12T abed

2020/00293
/LAPR

2021/00223
/LAPR

Seoul Bird

Mrs Chew's
Chinese
Kitchen

Unit
2133Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GF

Unit
2134Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GE

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

Playing of
Recorded
Music

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the
Premises

23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

23:00:00 -
00:00:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00

23:00:00 -
00:00:00
23:00:00 -
00:30:00

09:30:00 -
00:00:00



Unit

2136Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2019/01688 Bleecker St. 'WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Burger W12 7GE Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Unit 3101-
3104Westfi
T eld London
g Shopping
g CentreAriel
g 2023/01113 WayLondon Late Night 23:00:00 -
/LAPR Nando's W12 7GF Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Unit 3123-
3125Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2024/00208 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Byron W12 7GF  Music 00:30:00

Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00



62T abed

2021/01501 Spaghetti

/LAPR

House

2024/00386 Pizza

/LAPR

Express

Unit
3125AWest
field
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GF

Unit
3126Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
W12 7GF

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -

Premises 00:00:00
Playing of

Recorded 09:30:00 -
Music 00:00:00

Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -

Premises 00:00:00
Playing of

Recorded 09:30:00 -
Music 00:30:00

Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00



0¢T abed

Unit

2106Westfi
eld London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2023/00450 WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -
/LAPR Tortilla W12 7GF  Music 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:00:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
K2000A The
VillageWest
field
London
Shopping
Caffe CentreAriel
2018/01220 Concerto | WayLondon Late Night 23:00:00 -
/LAPR Kiosk W12 7GF Refreshment 00:30:00
Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the |09:30:00 -
Premises 00:00:00
Kiosk
2013AWest
field
London
Shopping
CentreAriel Playing of
2022/00011 Unit WayLondon Recorded 09:30:00 -

/LAPR K2013A W12 7GE  Music 00:00:00



TET abed

2019/00262
/LAPR

Kiosk
2016AWest
field
London
Shopping
CentreAriel
WayLondon
Master Bao ‘W12 7GE

23:00:00 -
00:00:00

Late Night
Refreshment

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the 09:30:00 -

Premises 00:00:00
Late Night 23:00:00 -
Refreshment 00:30:00

Sale of Alcohol
On and Off the 09:30:00 -

Premises 00:00:00



From: Overton Adrian: H&F <Adrian.Overton@Ibhf.gov.uk>

Sent: 20 January 2025 16:28

To: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@|bhf.qov.uk>

Cc: Perez-Trillo Cristina: H&F <Cristina.Perez-Trillo@|bhf.gov.uk>; Barrett Sophia:
H&F <Sophia.Barrett@Ibhf.gov.uk>; Masini Bill: H&F <Bill.Masini@|bhf.qov.uk>
Subject: 2024/02120/LAPR - 143 Askew Road

Importance: High

Dear Lorna,

Please take this email as a representation from the Licensing Authority in relation to
the new premises licence application made by Mr Mandeep Singh Bhatia at 143
Askew Road, W12 9AU

We have concerns that there is a direct link to the current licence holder at this
premises (Mr Subir Singh Bhatia). This licence is in the process of being reviewed
due to a number of underage sales at the premises.

We feel that the irresponsible management of the premises will continue if a new
licence is granted to Mr Mandeep Singh Bhatia, and that the crime and disorder
licensing objective will also continue to be undermined.

Further information on this representation will be provided in due course.

Kind regards

Adrian

Adrian Overton

Licensing Team Manager

Licensing

Place Department
Hammersmith & Fulham Council

Page 132



From: I

Sent: 21 January 2025 10:56

To: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@I|bhf.gov.uk>

Subject: With reference to new licence application at 143 Askew Road which has been made by
Mandeep Singh Bhatia : 2024/02120/LAPR.

Good Morning Lorna,

New licence application at 143 Askew Road which has been made by Mandeep
Singh Bhatia : 2024/02120/LAPR.

| have been made aware an additional license has been applied for under a different
name, however, | am concerned that this new license being applied for has links to the
current license holders and therefore | have the very same concerns with regards the
selling of Alcohol to minors and not adhering to any of the precautions and safety
measures required.

| attach the account below of the afternoon my daughter was a victim of such a sale.
RE: Incident Sunday 27th October 2024- Alcohol being sold to minors - Askew Road

| fully support the review submitted by the licensing Authority to revoke Newmart’s
License to sell alcohol or any tobacco products. Sadly my daughter was a victim of
Newsmart in underage selling of Alcohol and vapes and ended up in a critical condition
in hospital.

On Sunday 27th October at approximately 3pm my daughter ([ and four
of her friends (||l went into Newsmart and bought a bottle of vodka and
two vapes. At no point were they asked for any ID or questioned in any way. 30 minutes
later they went back in and bought a further bottle of Vodka. They were clearly
underage and look like 13 and 14yr olds.

They then proceeded to drink the Vodka and smoke the Vapes which resulted in four
ambulances being called and three children in particular, (including my daughter who
is-) passed out. When the ambulance came my daughter was already in a
partial shut down and her blood pressure was dangerously low, one of the other girls
was Tachycardia and passed out. We were blue lighted to the hospital, on our way we
had to pull over as my daughter's blood pressure dropped again and they had to pullit
back up before carrying onto the hospital.

Page 133



On arrive at Aand E, Chelsea and Westminster, they were unable to get a line in her as
she was so dehydrated and in a partial shutdown. She required a heat blanket, fluids
and ittook her 8 hours to come around.

As a result of this and as a mother of three | can honestly say it was one of my darkest
days in parenting and the experience has deeply shaken me. My daughter as aresultis
traumatised by her experience and the horror she inadvertently put us as her family
through. | don’t hear a siren or look at an ambulance and not remember that night.

The Newsmart should not be able to continue to sell alcohol or tobacco products
whilst not adhering to basic safeguarding of our children and teenagers. They have a
reputation amongst the local schools for being easy to buy such items underage. The
girls in question have witnessed in the past other children of a similar age procure with
no question vapes and vodka.

| hope this supports the review of the above licence.

Please can you ensure my hame and any personal information is redacted from
this email so my daughter and | remain anonymous. We live locally and need to
ensure my child’s safety.

Many thanks

From: I

Sent: 21 January 2025 11:20

To: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@I|bhf.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: With reference to new licence application at 143 Askew Road which has been made by
Mandeep Singh Bhatia : 2024/02120/LAPR.

Page 134



From: I

Sent: 21 January 2025 09:04
To: Clir Umeh Mercy: H&F <Mercy.Umeh@Ibhf.gov.uk>; Cllr Qayyum Zarar: H&F
<Zarar.Qayyum@lbhf.gov.uk>

Subject: Newsmart application to review licence - new application

Dear Mercy and Zarar

| write to you as Chair and councillor of the Licensing committee as | wish to make a
representation to application : 2024/02120/LAPR.

There are concerns that the new licence holder at 143 Askew Road, Mandeep Singh
Bhatia may have a direct connection to the previous licence holder. | have serious
concerns if this is to be granted due to an incident that occurred on 27th October

2024 concerning children of ages 13 and 14 in our community, being sold vodka and
vapes and ending up with 3 minors in a serious way unconscious in Chelsea and
Westminster hospital.

Please see below the outline of this incident. | hope this supports the review of this
new licence.

Kind regards
I

On Sunday 27th October at around 3-3:30pm 5 young girls aged 13 and 14 (including
my daughter) went into Newsmart and bought a bottle of vodka and two vapes. At no
point were they asked for any ID or questioned in any way. 30 minutes later they went
back in and bought a further bottle of Vodka. They counted out their change in front of
the shop attendant and paid for the 2nd bottle with coins. They were clearly underage
and look like 13 and 14yr olds.

The 5 girls drank the Vodka and smoked the Vapes which resulted in four ambulances
being called and three children in particular, being blue-lighted to hospital as they had
passed out. When the paramedics came into the house one girl was already in a partial
shut down and her blood pressure was dangerously low, one of the other girls was
Tachycardia and passed out. 3 girls were taken to Chelsea and Westminster where
they were cared for for 8 hours until 2 of the girls came round. It was a horrific
experience.

Page 135



The Newsmart should not be able to continue to sell alcohol or tobacco products; they
have a local reputation amongst the secondary schools that they will sell both alcohol
and vapes without asking for any form of identification. They are clearly not adhering
to basic safeguarding of our children and teenagers. My daughter was coming home
from school just before Christmas and after the event on October 27th and some girls
in her schoolyear wentinto Newsmart and bought several vapes - they are clearly still
behaving and selling products to children such as vapes and vodka.

From: [
Sent: 21 January 2025 13:12

To: Licensing HF: H&F <licensing@|bhf.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: Newsmart application to review licence - new application

Dear Lorna McKenna

My details are

Kind regards

Page 136



	Agenda
	3 JMB Food and Wine, 143 Askew Road, London, W12 9AU - 6:30pm
	Appendix 1 - Application to Review Premises Licence
	Appendix 2 - Current Premises Licence
	Appendix 3 - Map of Neighbouring Premises
	Appendix - Map of Neighbouring Premises
	Copy of MG Food  Wine 143 Askew Road Neighbouring Premises
	Sheet2


	Appendix 4- Police Representation
	Appendix 5 - Trading Standards Representation [PUBLIC ACCESS]
	Appendix 6 - Representations [PUBLIC ACCESS]
	Appendix 7 - Secretary of Sates Guidance - Reviews

	4 MG Food & Wine, 143 Askew Road, London, W12 9AU - 8pm or after the consideration of the first hearing.
	Appendix 1 - Application & Plan
	Appendix 2 - Map of Neighbouring Premises
	Appendix - Map of Neighbouring Premises
	Copy of MG Food  Wine 143 Askew Road Neighbouring Premises
	Sheet2


	Appendix 3 - Representations [PUBLIC ACCESS]




